WESi Lﬁndon WUSTB West London Waste Authority

Clerk

PO Box 1358
Harrow

HA3 3QN

11 January 2024

If you require further information about this agenda please contact: Alison Atherton, Tel:
07825 726493. E-mail: alison.atherton@harrow.gov.uk.

West London Waste Authority

A meeting of the West London Waste Authority will be held in The Auditorium - Harrow Council
Hub, Kenmore Avenue, Harrow, HA3 8LU on Friday 19 January 2024 at 11.00 am

Membership

Councillor Deirdre Costigan, London Borough of Ealing
Councillor Stephen Greek, London Borough of Harrow
Councillor Guy Lambert, London Borough of Hounslow
Councillor Eddie Lavery, London Borough of Hillingdon
Councillor Krupa Sheth, London Borough of Brent
Councillor Julia Neden Watts, London Borough of Richmond

Agenda

PART | - ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION WHILE THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE IN
ATTENDANCE

1. Apologies for absence
2. Declarations of interest
Members are reminded that if they have a pecuniary interest in any matter being discussed

at the meeting they must declare the interest. They may not take part in any discussion or
vote on a matter in which they have a pecuniary interest.

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2023 (To Follow)

4. 2024/25 Budget (Pages 5 - 40)
5. West London Waste Authority 2023-24 Business Plan (Pages 41 - 48)
6. Contracts and Operations Update (Pages 49 - 52)
7. Finance Update November 2023 (Pages 53 - 60)
8. Audit Committee - Terms of Reference (Pages 61 - 74)

PART II - ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION AFTER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND



PUBLIC

Nil



Useful Information

The venue is accessible to people with special needs. If you have specific requirements,
please contact the officer listed on the front page of this agenda.

You can access the agenda online at Browse meetings - West London Waste Authority

Recording and reporting on public meetings

Please note that members of public can choose to record or report in other ways, on this public
meeting. If you wish to do so then please read the Authority’s protocol which can be found
online. Copies of the protocol are also available at the meeting.

The Authority asks that you avoid recording members of the audience who are not participants
at the meeting. The Authority will seek to facilitate this. However, anyone attending a public
meeting does so in the knowledge that recording may take place and that they may be part of
that record.

Hugh Peart
Clerk to the Authority


https://moderngov.harrow.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1367&Year=0
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD10446&ID=10446&RPID=96096921&sch=doc&cat=20947&path=20947

This page is intentionally left blank



WEST LONDON WASTE AUTHORITY

Aacenda ltem 4
Pages 5 to 40

Report of the Finance Manager 19 January 2024

2024/25 Budget

SUMMARY

This report sets out the 2024/25 budget proposal and the key points are as follows:

Growth forecast in levies is 8% (£5.5 million) in the context of inflation being higher than budgeted for
prior year (4%), providing additional services to Boroughs to reduce residual waste (1.5%) and inflation for
the current year budgeted at 6.5% but dampened by the PPP contract for residual waste and savings made
where appropriate (2.5%).

The Authority is budgeting to pay boroughs PPP income (i.e. electricity) totalling £4.2 million by September
2024. The growth in levies offset against the PPP income is therefore reduced to 1.9%.

A programme of work totalling £2.8m over 3 years (£1.2 million in 2024/25) is to be funded from the
Authority’s share of PPP income and will deliver carbon and financial savings directly to boroughs. In the
prior year, this was budgeted at £1.1 million.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
The Authority is asked to:-

1)
2)

3)

4)

5)

6)
7)

8)

9)

Approve 2024/25 budget
Approve the budget for work to be met from PPP income

Approve the Pay As You Throw (PAYT) rates in section 15 and the PAYT levy made up of two components
totalling of £57.4 million

Approve the Fixed Cost Levy (FCL) of £15.2 million in section 16

Approve the recommended trade and construction prices in section 17 and delegated authority to the
Treasurer to change these in year should the need arise

Approve the new proposed capital budgets in section 18
Approve the spend of £450,000 on containers for the Social Value and Reuse programme

Approve the target level of reserves of £18 million to act as a buffer for managing risks and avoiding
supplementary levies, in section 19

Note the Medium and Long Term Financial Plan in section 20

1. Introduction

1.1 The 2024/55 draft budget was considered in detail at the Authority meeting in December 2023 and was
shared with West London Environment Directors and West London Treasurers. The borough Finance

Directors were also asked to provide a formal response to the budget proposals.




1.2 No changes have subsequently been made to the 2024/25 draft budget which is as reported in December
2023 and the report which follows is almost the same as December’s report but with updates for:
e Use of the latest 2023/24 forecast in the table in section 2
e Budgeted PPP income for 2023/24 included in the forecast in section 2
e Current year budget, forecast and 2024/25 budget figures for each expense line shown under
relevant heading
e RAG rating for 2023/24 budgeted savings in section 12
e Budget Monitoring forecast as at Nov23 added to reserves table in section 19
e Formal feedback from borough Finance Directors (section 21 and appendix 2)

2. Executive Summary

2.1 This year amidst the continued economic uncertainty and financial challenge, the 2024/25 budget proposal
continues to aim to provide boroughs with greater stability and better predictability (a key theme identified in
the Finance Strategy).

2.2 The levies for the Authority to be passed through to boroughs has increased by £5.5 million, a growth of 8%
from 2023/24. In context, the increase is summarised in the below table and a detailed description follows.

Total increase in levies £'000
Tonnage increase 1,512
WTD Inflation 1,353
General inflation 150
Insurance 1,200
Lakeside - variance to prior year budget and forecast 404
Business rates - variance to prior year budget and forecast 858
Total 5,478

2.3 It is worth noting that the Authority takes a prudent and risk based approach on contracts and aims to build
mitigation within our contracts. Whilst the PPP contract is dampened by the impact of inflation, it also has
mechanisms built in to allow for additional income if certain criteria are met. The last couple of years have
seen the Authority and boroughs benefit from the additional income off the back of high electricity prices, and
this has mitigated to a certain extent against the high rise in inflation which has impacted on spend. The growth
in levies set off against the PPP income to be shared with boroughs is 1.9% against the 8% being shown above
without the shared PPP income. However, inflation and energy prices can shift upwards and downwards, and
the additional income we have been receiving is not a guaranteed income stream to the Authority.

2.4 In the prior year, the budgeted inflation was 10% which was 3.8% lower than the actual of 13.8%. Therefore,
the proposed 2024/25 budget has growth based on the inflationary pressures from last year following through as
well as an increase of the budgeted 6.5% inflation. Key items to note that varied from the 2023/24 budget were:

1 The actual Lakeside gate fee actual came in at £5 higher than budgeted, meaning that there was a £400k
impact on the budget.

2 Business rates had gone through a valuation process and on average were 38% higher than budgeted, which
was an impact of £858k on budget.

2.5 As mentioned, inflation has been budgeted in 2024/25 at 6.5% on the relevant contracts. Within Waste
Transport and Disposal costs, the PPP contract with WLER dampens inflation from 6.5% to 2.2% due to the
pricing mechanism which protects a significant amount of tonnages from the impact of inflation. Savings have
also been identified where spend is not required, or can be outsourced at a cheaper alternative but has a much
more positive impact to the Authority.



2.6 Insurance premiums within the waste industry have increased significantly and in prior years, the Authority was
able to absorb this cost. However, with the increase of fires, floods and heat, the costs are too significant to
absorb. Insurance premiums have increased by 518% since 2016 with general insurance companies finding the
waste industry being high risk. The cost of the WLER insurance premium has been included in 2024/25 under
the PAYT SERC element.

2.7 In 2023/24, West London Waste Authority have continued to provide a more greater and varied service to
boroughs, meaning that whilst there are an increase in tonnages budgeted for 2024/25 within certain material
streams (mainly recyclables), the overall mission of reducing residual waste has been effective. The impact of
this on the budget is a growth of 1.5%.

2.8 With the emissions trading scheme on the horizon, West London Waste Authority are committed to working
collaboratively with boroughs on ways to reduce fossil carbon in waste, and ultimately reduce residual waste.
There is a risk that boroughs could see their levies increase if we do not continue in our programmes and
projects of waste reduction, and the budget allows for more collaborative working to mitigate against some of
these financial risks.

2.9 The 2024/25 budget anticipates PPP income (estimated total of £6.3 million) and proposes to pay boroughs
£4.2 million by September 2024 apportioned using the final approved council tax base (i.e. approx. £0.7 million
each). Budgeting for the payment of £4.2 million will therefore require the Authority to manage the risk of
lower than anticipated income (e.g. due to low electricity prices, actual impact of windfall taxes) by using its
reserves.

2.10 The Authority takes a full system approach to managing costs. This is illustrated by the Abbey Road budget,
where expenditure has increased by 10% (£117k), allowing more of Brent Council's household waste to be
managed through the site and delivering Brent Council a saving of £1m per year.

2.11  Most of the Authority’s spending relates to borough activity levels which are met/serviced through
contracts. The key drivers of costs and therefore levies are the boroughs’ own forecast activity levels and the
contractual inflation. The key long term mitigation of spend and therefore levies is managing the waste flows.
These are largely within the control of boroughs. The budget for 2024/25 also continues to identify the 4 key
programmes of work to be met from the Authority’s share of PPP income already received. These programmes
were established in 2023/24 and there was a total of £2.8 million budget allocated. In 2023/24 the budget was
£1.1 million and for 2024/25 the budget is at £1.2 million. The programmes of work have been developed to
identify interventions where boroughs will see the benefits in their own budgets - essentially spend (Authority)
to save (boroughs) programmes.

2.12  The table below sets out the 2024/25 budget and the movement from the 2023/24 budget. The latest
2023/24 forecast is also included to provide context and illustrate the current level of activity. The spend lines
have also been split out to separate spend from business as usual activities and those from the programme of
work funded by PPP income, providing better transparency.



2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Changes in Change in

budget forecast budget budgets budget

£ 000’s £ 000’s £ 000’s £ 000’s %
Business As Usual Costs
WTD - Waste Transport and Disposal 51,531 51,989 55,134 3,602 7%
Depreciation 10,375 10,375 10,712 338 3%
Financing Cost 4,971 4,971 4,829 (143) (3%)
Premises 2,603 3,499 3,681 1,077 41%
Employees 2,617 2,878 2,960 344 13%
Supplies and Services 1,187 2,019 2,500 1,314 111%
MRF Service Costs 2,256 3,521 5,804 3,548 157%
Revenue Funding of Debt 984 984 1,006 22 2%
Concession Accounting Adjustments (4,570) (4,570) (4,666) (96) 2%
BAU costs 71,954 75,665 81,960 10,006 14%
Programme of work funded by PPP
income
Depreciation 107 107 158 51 47%
Premises 45 41 103 58 121%
Employees 308 272 267 (41) (13%)
Supplies and Services 660 585 797 137 21%
Other Income 83 (83) 0%
Waste Transport and Disposal 5 5 0%
Programme costs 1,120 1,005 1,247 127 11%

| Total costs | 73074 | 76670 | 83,207 | 10,133 14%
Income
Levies 67,116 67,520 72,561 5,445 8%
MRF service income 2,256 3,521 5,804 3,548 157%
Other Income 2,582 3,445 3,595 1,013 39%
Programme costs funded by PPP income 1,120 1,120 1,247 127 11%
Total income 73,074 75,606 83,207 10,133 14%
| Total (surplus)/deficit | 0 | 1063 | | 0

PPP income received 0 6,300 0 0 0%
PPP i.ncome d'isbursed to boroughs (in 6,300 12,729 4,200 (2,100) (33%)
relation to prior year)

2.13  The budget headings are per our usual format for regular budget monitoring reports and accounting
categories. The most notable movements relate to the growth in waste transport and disposal costs, premises,
supplies and services and levies, the inclusion of PPP income payable to boroughs and the funding of 3
programmes of work.

2.14  Note that the MRF activities have a neutral effect with costs being passed through to Ealing and Brent for
the services provided. There is an increase in cost and income to reflect Brent being on board for this service.

2.15 Plans for the coming year and an explanation of budget items follows.



3. Programme of work funded by PPP income

2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Changes in Change in

budget forecast budget budgets budget

£ 000’s £ 000’s £ 000’s £ 000’s %
Programme costs 1,120 1,005 1,247 127 11%

3.1 The Finance Strategy approved in September 2022 identified that two thirds of PPP income received in 2023/24
would be passed through to boroughs and one third of PPP income would be set aside for Authority Strategic
projects.

3.2 On this basis for the Authority’s share of PPP income, three programmes of work were identified:

e Citizen Perception — To better inform residents of complex recycling challenges and inform boroughs of
recycling opportunities

e Social Value and Reuse — to decarbonise HRRC services and create social value

e Digital Twin — to decarbonise collection services and find immediate cost savings for boroughs

Brief summaries follow. The programmes have been developed with borough colleagues and reported to
stakeholders to monitor performance.

3.3 Citizen Perception - The purpose of the programme is to test and measure the understanding of residents
regarding waste and its role in climate change.

Effective usage of the systems that are in place already would more than halve the residual waste generated in
West London. WLWA officers are working with insights specialists and behaviour academics to identify
mechanisms to shift the culture of residents towards valuing material and understanding the
limitations/constraints of the system.

3.4 Social Value and Reuse — The purpose of this programme is to start moving material even further up the waste
hierarchy to Reuse and Reduction. This is a programme designed to change the linear model of ownership and
start the transition to a circular economy. Significant volumes of reusable items are brought to HRRCs in the area
and are currently sent for recycling (material value). This programme of works is to start working with third sector
and SMEs to develop a sustainable model for reuse and repair in West London.

3.5 Digital Twin — This is a programme of work developed with the Boroughs to help identify areas of savings and
efficiency through integrating the data available across the different organisations.

The digitisation and integration of the data across the Boroughs and WLWA enables the system to be modelled to
estimate future services impacts from changes required such as DRS, EPR and simpler recycling collections.

3.6 The above provides an outline of the three programmes of work. The programme spend totalling £2.8 million
is to be met from the WLWA share of PPP income already received and will run over three years delivering both
financial and carbon benefits directly to boroughs. The aim is to generate long term savings for the boroughs.
2024/25 is the second year for these programmes.

3.7 WLWA is continuing to work collaboratively with boroughs to reduce their food in residual waste. This was
initiated in 2020 where WLWA gave £0.5 million to each borough to increase food recycling and reduce food
waste in residual.



4. Waste Transport & Disposal (WTD)

2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Changes in Change in
budget forecast budget budgets budget
£ 000’s £000’s £ 000's £ 000’s %

WTD - Waste Transport and Disposal 51,531 51.989 55,134 3,602 7%

3.1 The WTD budget accounts for the majority of the entire WLWA budget and makes up two thirds of the
spending. Strategically, this is where most of the significant saving opportunities can be found.

3.2 The 2024/25 WTD budget is £55.1 million, an increase of £3.6 million.

3.3 The residual waste budget is the key driver and represents 88% of the WTD costs (or 58% of all Authority costs
— hence the strategic significance). For 2024/25 this is based on boroughs’ forecasts of residual waste which

are 0.2% lower than the 2023/24 budget and reflecting the current level of activity.

3.4 Looking at the complete picture, the 2024/25 budgeted tonnage is made up of the following materials:

Material 2023/24 Budget 2024/25 Budget Change
Tonnes Tonnes
Residual 417,757 416,951 (806)
Green 47,321 55,243 7,922
Wood 18,945 18,700 (245)
Kitchen 32,616 31,777 (839)
Tyres* 8 8,214 8,206
Gypsum 172 308 137
Plastic Hard 93 93 0
Soil + Rubble 7,841 7,600 (241)
Dry Mixed Recycling 24,948 48,040 23,092
Cardboard 0 3,300 3,300
Asbestos 12 17 5
Budgeted tonnages 549,711 590,241 37,225
Mattresses (units) 86,521 137,696 51,175

3.5 * Whilst tyres was under budgeted in 2023/24, the budget impact is £30,000 and has been corrected in

2024/25.

3.6 No significant service changes were identified by boroughs. Borough forecast volumes are on par with prior

year’s budget setting exercise but in overall terms show a small growth on current activity levels.

3.7 To calculate the budgeted spend, RPIX of 6.5% (a mid-range forecast from HM treasury) has been applied to
contractor prices where there is a contractual indexation requirement. Published forecasts including HM
Treasury range from 5.8% to 7.1% with Septembers RPIX standing at 6.0%.

3.8 It is worth noting that within the main PPP contract this impact is partly mitigated by the pricing mechanism
which dampens the overall effect of inflation — a very effective feature of the contract. Whilst the majority of
the Authority’s contracts are impacted by inflation, the PPP contract with WLER has been designed so that it is
protected from the significant increases in inflation. To put into context, a significant amount of tonnages are
protected from the impact of inflation over the whole life of the contract. For 2024/25, the impact of inflation
on this contract is 2.2% against the HM Treasury range of 5.8% to 7.1%. This is highlighted in the sensitivity

analysis in section 20.

10




3.9 The Lakeside contract against prior year’s budget sees a significant increase. This is because the rate in 2023/24
was budgeted at £4.50 less than the actual, which is £0.4 million spend we have had to budget in 2024/25 as
well as the additional inflation of 6.5%.

3.10 Where other contracts are due for procurement, procuring managers have used best available market

information to estimate rates for the coming year.

5. Depreciation

2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Changes in Change in

budget forecast budget budgets budget

£ 000’s £ 000’s £ 000’s £ 000’s %
Depreciation (BAU) 10,375 10,375 10,712 338 3%
Depreciation (Programmes) 107 107 158 51 47%
Total Depreciation 10,482 10,482 10,870 389 3.7%

4.1 The depreciation budgets for 2024/25 of £10.9 million is £0.4 million higher than in 2023/24. This principally
reflects property asset valuations and capital additions.

4.2 The largest element of depreciation relates to the SERC (Severnside Energy Recovery Centre) and totals £9.2
million. It should be noted that for depreciation calculations, the SERC has to be separated out into its main
components and each key component has to be depreciated over its own expected life.

4.3 Depreciation for the remaining assets have been calculated using valuations agreed with auditors and
subsequent change in the asset registers (i.e. additions and disposals).

6. Financing

2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Changes in Change in

budget forecast budget budgets budget

£ 000’s £ 000’s £ 000’s £ 000’s %
Financing Cost 4,971 4,971 4,829 (143) (3%)

5.1 The financing costs reflect the interest paid on loans.

These have reduced from £5.0 million in 2023/24 to £4.8

million for 2024/25 primarily as a result of the payment profile of repayment loans. With repayment loans a
fixed sum is paid every year comprising of both interest and principal repayment. The interest element will

continue to fall over coming years, conversely the principal repayment will rise.

5.2 The largest component of financing costs relates to borrowing from boroughs for the construction of the SERC
and totals £4.4 million. The loans are at arm’s length and from a borrowing perspective the boroughs are like
any other lender with the loan agreements specifying the relationship with the Authority and including a rate

of interest of 7.604%.

5.3 The interest on loans for the purchase of transfer station freeholds makes up the balance of £0.4 million and

represents a PWLB loan at 2.24%.

7. Premises

2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Changes in Change in

budget forecast budget budgets budget

£000’s £000’s £ 000’s £000’s %
Premises (BAU) 2,603 3,499 3,681 1,077 41%
Premises (Programmes) 45 41 103 58 121%
Total Premises 2,648 3,540 3,784 1,135 43%

11




7.1 The overall premises budgets for 2024/25 of £3.8 million are higher than the cost of £2.7 million in 2023/24.
This is reflective of the budget for 2023/24 being significantly lower to the forecast of £3.5 million due to higher
than budgeted business rates following a valuation. This meant thatin 2023/24, business rates were on average
38% higher than budgeted (£0.86 million). The 2024/25 budget for premises takes this into account, and has
applied a small increase.

7.2 Without the impact of rates being higher in 2023/24, the growth in premises is 8% against 2023/24 budget and
% against the 2023/24 forecast.

7.3 The largest component of the premises costs are business rates which account for £3.3 million, of which SERC
rates make up £2.1 million and transfer stations £1.0 million.

8. Employees

2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Changes in Change in

budget forecast budget budgets budget

£000’s £000’s £ 000's £000’s %
Employees (BAU) 2,617 2,878 2,960 344 13%
Employees (Programmes) 308 272 267 (41) (13%)
Total Employees 2,925 3,150 3,227 303 10%

8.1 The 2024/25 employee budgets of £3.2 million is £0.3 million higher than the 2023/24 level. This growth relates
principally to wage inflation anticipated in 2023/24 at c. 4.5% and then a budgeted wage inflation in 2024/25
at 5%.

8.2 Savings have been recognised within Corporate Services with the reduction of head count. Within Programs, a
role has been removed due to it being outsourced to provide a better rounded service.

8.3 The 2024/25 establishment of 42.2 full time equivalent (FTE) posts is a decrease of 0.5 from the previous year.

8.4 Putting this into context the Authority employed 32 FTE in 2014/15 and over many years FTE numbers have
gradually increased to close to 40. The size of the staffing establishment numbers remains small and stable
whilst providing the resource to drive forward business plan objectives and undertake the increasing volume,
variety and complexity of work. The staffing establishment has increased over time to support waste
minimisation and working towards a circular economy.

8.5 Boroughs are increasing recycling through improved segregation of materials at the kerbside and at
HRRCs/transfer stations, resulting in more material being managed by WLWA. Along with Brent joining Ealing
in the dry mixed recycling contract, the volume of material to be managed by WLWA has increased. However,
the overall establishment has stayed flat.

8.6 The staffing increase in Contracts/Operations team is directly linked to delivering more work on the Boroughs
behalf. The Operational establishment will be sufficiently resourced to manage the additional materials from
Brent Council at Abbey Road, and also provide ongoing operational support to Richmond Council for
managing its two waste sites. The contract management and procurement function is also increasing slightly
to continue to procure and manage more services on behalf of the Boroughs, including establishing service
level agreements between the partner authorities. The budgeted establishment will ensure that the team is
resourced to procure in a smart and agile way that returns best value from the market, whilst delivering
robust management of these multiple contracts and their interfaces. This delivers significant savings over
delivering services through an integrated contract.

8.7 A notional breakdown of the establishment by area of activity and whether business as usual (BAU) or
programme work is provided below:

12



BAU Activity 2023/24 2024/25 Change
Contracts/Operations 19.0 21.0 2
Corporate Services 9.7 8.6 (2.2)
Projects 8.0 8.6 0.6
Total 36.7 38.2 1.5
Programme Activity 2023/24 2024/25 Change
Contracts/Operations 1.0 1.0 0
Corporate Services 2.0 1.0 (1.0)
Projects 3.0 2.0 (1.0)
Total 6.0 4.0 (2.0)
Total FTE 42.7 42.2 | (0.5) |
9. Supplies & Services
2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Changes in Change in
budget forecast budget budgets budget
£000’s £000’s £ 000's £000’s %
Supplies and Services (BAU) 1,187 2,019 2,500 1,314 111%
Supplies and Services (Programmes) 660 585 797 137 21%
Total Supplies and Services 1,847 2,604 3,297 1,451 79%

9.1 The 2024/25 overall budget for Supplies & Services is £3.3 million, an increase of £1.5 million from 2023/24.
There has been a focus on savings, and managers have reduced business as usual spending as much as possible
without detriment to the service provided.

9.2 The growth relates to the bi-annual SERC and transfer station insurance which has increased by 518% since
2016. To put this in context, the bi-annual insurance in 2016, which covered 2016-2018 was c. £0.2 million.
This has since increased to £1.2 million for 2020-2022.

9.3 The cost of insurance previously was managed via reserves and was not budgeted. The cost was deducted from
reserves before disbursements were made to the boroughs. In light of the significant increase in the insurance,
the cost has now been shown in the budget to highlight the significant increase, and to provide visibility on

spend.

9.4 The insurance market in this industry continues to be challenging due to market rates and insurers appetites
deteriorating. With the additional impact of increased fires at transfer stations, it is likely that the insurance
premiums will be significantly higher and this has been budgeted for in 2024/25.

9.5 The key factors impacting on the insurance rates are fires, floods (on railway lines and roads due to storms and
heavier than expected rain showers) and heat (due to the heatwaves we have been experiencing in recent years
and the infrastructure not being fit for purpose). With the probability of all three of these increasing, the
insurance market in this industry is challenging.

9.6 £0.8 million of the spend in the table above is for the programme of work detailed in section 3.

9.7 Other notable items include spending for professional services, external audit, insurances and borough services
(e.g. committee services, treasury etc).

13




10. Revenue Funding of Debt

2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Changes in Change in

budget forecast budget budgets budget

£ 000’s £000’s £ 000’s £ 000’s %
Revenue Funding of Debt 984 984 1,006 22 2%

10.1 The loan which financed the purchase of the transfer station sites is a typical repayment loan. It is made up of
two components — an element for the interest on the loan (see Financing Costs) and an element repaying the
loan principal.

10.2 The Revenue Funding of Debt is the element repaying the sites loan and totals just over £1.0 million for
2024/25. This is marginally higher (£22,000) than 2023/24 reflecting that within a typical repayment loan, the
amount of principal repaid increases over time and amount of interest falls.

10.3 It is worth providing the following brief recap of the revenue funding of debt which was detailed in Authority
papers recommending the site purchase a number of years ago:

10.4 It is a requirement for public bodies to ultimately fund the cost of assets through levies and taxes. For the
Authority this is achieved through a combination of the depreciation charge and revenue funding of debt.

10.5 Typically the acquisition of assets result in an annual depreciation charge. This annual expenditure is recovered
through the levy mechanism and therefore the levies over the life of the asset fund its purchase.

10.6 However, the acquisition of the sites freehold is essentially a purchase of land. For land, accounting rules do
not allow a depreciation charge. This means that in order to fund the purchase through levies a different (but
comparable to depreciation) annual charge is made — the revenue funding of debt.

11. Concession Accounting Adjustments

2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Changes in Change in

budget forecast budget budgets budget

£000’s £000’s £ 000’s £000’s %
Concession Accounting Adjustments (4,570) (4,570) (4,666) (96) 2%

11.1 Essentially under a PPP arrangement a contractor pays for the construction of an asset and then recovers its
investment over a long period through its operational charges to the local authority (i.e. its price per tonne).

11.2 There are very specific and detailed accounting requirements that govern this type of arrangement. This is
because the underlying nature of this transaction is that the local authority essentially owns the asset for a
period of time and the contractor is essentially a lender financing the construction of the asset.

11.3 The key feature of the accounting is the calculation of a concession accounting adjustment to separate out
the disposal and financing costs, followed by stripping out from expenditure a notional sum for the repayment
of any underlying borrowing by the contractor.

11.4 The concession accounting adjustments over the term of the contract were agreed with the auditors EY. For
2024/25 they total £4.7 million, compared to £4.6 million in 2023/24. This accounting adjustment reduces
overall costs and levies.

14



12. Growth and Savings

12.1 The majority of Authority spending is committed under long term contracts (e.g. PPP) or agreements (e.g.

loans) or governed by accounting requirements (e.g. depreciation). This leaves less opportunity for savings.

12.2 However, as part of the budget setting process at an operational level, a variety of measures (including a
managers’ challenge session with the Senior Leadership Team) have ensured savings across areas where

managers are able to exercise some control.

12.3 The tables below identify the growth and savings which are included within the 2024/25 draft budget. The

tables separate out real growth and savings from other movements reflecting longer term decisions.

12.4 Summary table:

£ 000’s
Budgeted costs/levies 2023/24 67,116
Growth 6,622
Savings (1,221)
Other movements 45
Budgeted costs/levies 2024/25 72,561

12.5 Growth table:

Area Explanation Growth
P £ 000’s
Increased contract costs resulting from inflation for residual
Waste waste (£1.9 million), haulage (£150,000) increase in mattress
tonnages (£400,000), increase in green tonnages (£600,000),
Transport . . . . 3,607
and Disposal increase in rubble tonnages (£150,000), increase in wood
P (£200,000), and a range of movements in other materials spends
(£160,000)
Premises Increase in business rates (£1.1 million) 1,146
Salary base rate for FY23/24 has a 4% NJC proposal uplift applied
Employees (£100,000), salary for 2024/25 has 5% uplift applied (£150,000), 288
new staffing requirements and internal promotions (£35,000)
WLER insurance premium (£1.2 million), leasing of equipment at
subplies and Abbey Road (£189,000), bin washing and pen stock valve
pr? increase (£70,000), outsourcing Ml work for Programs (£80,000), 1,581
Services . . . .
maintenance of equipment (£15,000), increase in bank costs
(£8,000), inflationary increases on contracts (£20,000)
6,622
12.6 Savings table:
Area Explanation Saving
P £000’s
Premises Reduction in reactive maintenance at Abbey Road. (12)

15




HR Assistant role removed (£30,000), and savings against role to

12.7 Other movements table:

12.8.

Empl 1
mployees be outsourced within Programmes (£50,000) (81)
subolies and Savings made on leasing equipment at Abbey Road (£40,000),
Sefvrices other savings identified (£20,000), consultancy not required (130)
(£68,000)
Other Acton Hub income (£84,000) and increase in sale of recyclable (143)
income materials (£60,000)
Trade waste | Reflective of an increase in pricing on residual and wood for (855)
income account customers and non-account customers.
(1,221)
Increase /
Area Explanation (Decrease) £
000's
This principally reflects property asset valuations and capital
Depreciation | zdditions. 388
Financing Reflecting reducing interest in repayment loans for SERC with (143)
Costs boroughs
Revenue . .. S
. Reflecting rising repayment of principal in repayment loan for
Funding of ) . 22
sites with PWLB
Debt
Conce55|'on Reflecting adjustments agreed with auditors for the last
Accounting Accounts (96)
Adjustment
Programme
work funded . . . .
by PPP Funding of strategic projects per Finance Strategy (127)
income
45
Pass through costs to other boroughs therefore nil impact on budget:
Increase /
Area Explanation (Decrease) £
000's

16




12.9.

MREF Service Includes Brent going forward in the budget along with Ealing for
costs this DMR service. 3,548
Increase in costs relation to managing Brent’s HRRC (Abbey
Road). Additional support is required due to the increase in
Agency throughput of street cleansing material. To support this in line 97
Income with our Health and Safety policy, an additional Traffic
Controller has been added to the budget.
3,646

Commentary has been added in the table to show progress on these savings.

Within the 2023/24 budget, the Authority had identified business as usual savings as per below.

Area Explanation Savings Savings Costs Net Commentary
budgeted | realised realised Impact
(£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000)
Waste Reduction in (2,139) (1,500) 887 (613) Savings have been tracked on the
Transport residual residual contract year to date and
and volumes an estimated £1.5m will be saved.
Disposal (£1,612,000), Mattresses have seen an increase
reduction in in units meaning the run rate to
mattress Mar24 shows that there will be
volumes an additional 44,000 units,
(£257,000) meaning spend is predicted to be
and better £227,000 higher than budgeted.
pricing Green waste has seen an increase
achieved from in tonnages of c. 17,000 meaning
procurement a run rate budget overspend of c.
of green £600,000.
waste
(£270,000)
Premises Reduction in (69) 0 600 The higher than budgeted
SERC related business rates following national
premises valuations saw an increase in
costs spend at the SERC site of over
(£69,000) £600,000.
Supplies Stripping out | (11) (100) 0 (100) Savings made on stationery,
and of unspent consultancy and support services
Services minor budgets - £100,000 savings forecasted by
(£11,000) end of Mar24.
Other Growth in (454) (500) 0 (500) Trade waste income forecasted
Income trade income to end £500,000 higher than
(£400,000), budgeted.
sale of
recyclables
(£40,000) and
other minor
improvements
(£14,000)

17




Total (2,673) (2,100) 1,487 (613)

12.10. The above table demonstrate that whilst savings are not on target, the increase in tonnages is a direct
impact of waste coming out of the residual waste stream. Savings are being made by the Authority where spend
is not required.

12.11. Within the 2023/24 budget, there were also savings identified as part of the new programmes funded from
the PPP income retained by WLWA which are shown below:

Programme Potential saving Actual saving (Forecast)
Communications £200k c.£160k
Social Value and Reuse £533k c.£550k
Digital Twin £600k c.£800k

12.12. The above table demonstrate that where boroughs are engaging with the Authority’s funded programmes,
the financial benefit is being recognised within their services through additional revenue, cost avoidance and
reduction.

12.13. Borough engagement with the Programmes is critical to the delivery of whole system savings. The approach
taken by WLWA has been to optimise the reduction of waste through capture of reuse and recyclable materials
and help deliver the additional work through efficiency in the collections and HRRC capture network. This requires
Borough team to implement operational change to realise the benefit.

12.14. The savings identified are within Borough spend, and not the Authority’s. These are tracked via discussions
with Boroughs and understanding the savings they have realised.

13. PAYT / FCL split

13.1  PAYT costs relate to waste that boroughs collect and deliver to transfer stations and FCL costs are those
which relate to waste from HRRC sites and the Authority’s running expenses.

13.2  Both also include an element for the recovery of SERC financing costs, depreciation, rates and concession
accounting adjustments. Insurance has been included in 2024/25 to reflect the increase in premiums due
to three key factors detailed in section 9.

13.3  The breakdown of the budget between PAYT and FCL activities is as follows:

PAYT (disposal cost) 20:;({;2 zoz:ééi c:gggi
Waste Transport and Disposal 43,986 46,352 2,365
PAYT Levy (disposal) (43,986) (46,352) (2,365)
Total 0 0 0
FA AR
Depreciation (SERC) 7,934 8,304 371
Financing Costs (SERC) 4,070 3,976 (94)
Insurance (SERC) 1,084 1,084

18



Premises (SERC) 1,210 1,892 682
e ey ™ aua|  was| oy
PAYT Levy (SERC) (9,100) (11,040) (1,940)
Total 0 0 0
FL 2023/24 2024/25 Change

£000’s £000’s £000’s
Waste Transport and Disposal 7,545 8,787 1,242
Employees 2,925 3,228 611
Premises 1,438 1,892 487
Supplies and Services 1,847 2,213 1,059
Depreciation 2,548 2,565 125
Financing 901 853 (49)
Revenue funding of Debt 984 1,006 22
iz;:;ilg:tAccountmg (456) (451) 5
Non Levy Income (2,582) (3,678) (1,096)
e s a0 wan| e
FCL Levy (14,030) (15,169) (1,161)
Total 0 0 0

13.4 Note that above there are two elements of the PAYT and one element of FCL.
14. Levy Setting

14.1 The breakdown of the Authority’s costs into the three components identified in section 13 are the basis of the
charging to boroughs. Each element is apportioned to boroughs in different ways.

1. PAYT (disposal) — Rates (£/tonne) for different materials which reflect the average prices paid to
contractors, charged to boroughs initially on the basis of budgeted tonnes but then reconciled and
adjusted (with rebate/charge) at the end of each quarter to reflect the actual tonnages.

2. PAYT (SERC) —this is the apportioned recharge of SERC costs (depreciation, financing etc) . The cost is
initially apportioned and charged on the basis of budgeted tonnes then at the end of every quarter
recalculated using the actual tonnage with any adjustment being rebated/charged to the borough.

3. FCL (fixed) — this is the recharge for all other costs (i.e. HRRC, overheads, an element of SERC costs
etc) apportioned on the basis of boroughs tax base from their final approved CTB1 returns.

Details of these follow in the next two sections.

15 PAYT Levy Income

15.1 As identified above the PAYT is made up of two components and therefore the PAYT levy is too. Combined the
PAYT levy will total £57.3 million (from the tables above £46.3 million plus £11.0 million).

19



15.2 The table below shows the proposed disposal rates for waste in 2024/25.

Material (Disposal) 2023/24 £ 2024/25 £

per tonne per tonne
Residual 109.76 114.60
Gully 67.31 71.69
Food 11.61 12.39
Green 40.94 43.60
Wood 67.67 79.34
Rubble 32.63 47.82
Soil 32.63 47.82
Mattresses (per mattress) 5.46 7.54

15.3 In addition to this, the Authority manages non-household waste from HRRC sites and incurs transport costs.

On a similar basis the average transport charges are provided below.

Material (Transport) 2023/24 £ 2024/25 £

per tonne per tonne
Residual (collected) 12.22 12.26
Other recyclables (collected) 18.63 21.34

15.4 These rates represent the average cost (or estimated cost for contracts due to be procured) to the Authority
for the disposal and transport of materials. They are the PAYT rates payable by boroughs in order to recover
costs.

15.5 These rates are applied to the 2023/24 tonnage forecasts from boroughs and result in a monthly charge to
them. Each quarter end a reconciliation exercise will take place to adjust for the actual amount of waste that
each borough delivers, so boroughs only pay for the volume of waste actually disposed.

15.6 Using tonnage forecasts from boroughs, the PAYT charges for 2024/25 are as follows:

Borough 2023/24 2024/25
PAYT PAYT Growth
disposal disposal £000’s
charge charge
£000’s £000’s
Brent 8,008 8,526 519
Ealing 8,920 9,509 588
Harrow 6,486 6,587 101
Hillingdon 8,583 9,101 518
Hounslow 7,048 7,543 495
Richmond 4,941 5,086 144
Total 43,986 46,352 2,365

15.7 The movement in the disposal costs of borough collected waste is reflected here.

15.8 It is worth repeating that should borough waste volumes be higher or lower than forecast, then each quarter
boroughs will be charged or refunded a sum to ensure they pay only for what is actually delivered.

15.9 The second, PAYT (SERC) component relates to the £11.0 million SERC cost, equivalent to £29.65 per tonne
(2023/24: £24.43). This will initially be apportioned and levied on the basis of 2023/24 budgeted residual
waste tonnages excluding gully waste. A quarterly exercise will then adjust this sum to reflect the actual
residual tonnages delivered that quarter with a reimbursement or additional charge. The initial apportioned
annual charge is summarised below.

20



Borough 2023/24 PAYT | 2024/25 PAYT
SERC charge | SERC charge Growth
£000’s £000’s £000’s
Brent 1,710 2,073 363
Ealing 1,929 2,387 458
Harrow 1,342 1,587 245
Hillingdon 1,678 2,052 374
Hounslow 1,445 1,781 336
Richmond 996 1,160 164
Total 9,100 11,040 1,940

15.10 The movement in the proportion of SERC cost (depreciation, insurance, financing etc) relating to borough
collections is reflected here.

16. FCL Income

16.1 The FCL charge primarily relates to the costs of managing the treatment and disposal of household waste
delivered to HRRC sites. It also includes the Authority’s administration and nets off other income. These costs
are apportioned to the boroughs.

16.2 The apportionment calculation initially uses last year’s provisional Council Tax base figures provided by the
boroughs. However, when charging, the FCL costs will be apportioned using the final borough approved
Council Tax base. Borough Council Tax base figures may not all be published in time for the January Authority
meeting and therefore the FCL charges will be finalised shortly afterwards.

16.3 On this basis the draft FCL (fixed) charge is as follows:

Estimated

2023/24 2024/25 2024/25 Change
Borough FCL . FCL .
R Council Tax R £000’s
charge £000’s charge £000’s

base
Brent 2,389 101,187 2,584 194
Ealing 2,872 121,613 3,105 233
Harrow 2,104 89,085 2,275 171
Hillingdon 2,447 103,625 2,646 199
Hounslow 2,109 89,309 2,280 171
Richmond 2,109 89,289 2,280 171
Total 14,029 594,108 15,169 1,140

16.4 The movement in all other costs including disposal and haulage of HRRC waste,

16.5 The FCL (fixed) sum will not change over the course of the year. The Authority bears any loss or surplus
resulting from overspend or underspend.

17. Other Income

17.1 The 2024/25 budget is £3.7 million, which is a £1.1 million improvement on 2023/24 and reflects activity at
current levels but allowing for increases as detailed below.

21



17.2 The majority of the income is from trade waste (£2.8 million). The proposed main trade and construction
charges per tonne at Abbey Road have been budgeted to increase for the trade waste (residual and wood
element). This is to remain competitive and details are provided below.

Type of waste 2024/25 £ 2023/24 £

Trade waste residual and wood £185.00 for account £160.00 for account
customers and £200.00 for customers and £165.00 for
others others

Trade waste recycling 80.00 80.00

Asbestos (Households only) 272.00 272.00

Mattresses (per mattress) 15.00 15.00

Bulky items 218.00 218.00

Gas bottles from commercial 5.00 5.00

sources

Fire extinguishers from commercial | 5.00 5.00

sources

Fridges from commercial sources 40.00 40.00

17.3 Changes and further charges may be introduced during the year in response to market conditions and where
appropriate in consultation with LB Brent. It is recommended that delegated authority be given to the Head
of Finance and Assistant Director Operations to change charges in year should the need arise.

17.4 Other income includes an agency fee which passes on the costs of running the Abbey Road HRRC to the local
borough. This fee has increased by 26%. The fee has remained flat for several years, but in the current year
additional support is required due to the increase in throughput of street cleansing material. To support this
in line with our Health and Safety policy, an additional Traffic Controller has been added to the budget.

17.5 In July 2024 the PPP contractor will pay the Authority its share of income in relation to the PPP contract,
principally electricity generation income.

17.6 At this stage, estimation of the sum due is inherent with market risks (electricity prices are volatile), political
risks (detailed working of the windfall tax) and economic risks (the impact of industrial action on the power
production). Nevertheless, it is predicted that the Authority will see income in the region of £6.3 million if we
assume ongoing electricity production and prices at the current levels and that there is no impact of the
windfall tax.

17.7 On this basis the estimated distribution to boroughs on receipt of funds from the contractor will be in the
region of £0.7 million each. This represents the two thirds pass through to boroughs of the estimated PPP
income (in accordance with the Finance Strategy) which will be apportioned to each borough using the final
approved council tax base.

17.8 The Authority is mindful of the challenging local authority finances so to help boroughs to budget for this
income with greater certainty, the Authority is committing (through this budget) to the distribution and will
utilise its reserves to manage the risks (section 19) of non-receipt on PPP income or receipts being lower than
estimated. Any additional PPP income received will also be shared in accordance with the Finance Strategy.

18. Capital

18.1 The new capital budget requirements for 2024/25 are listed below:

Social Value and reuse-Solar Panels, £180,000

Energy security and in year cost

reduction

Social Value Reuse-Containers £450,000 Acton Hub

22



Containers £150,000 Repair and reuse space for SMEs to
deliver Circular economy workshops etc.

IT strategy £400,000 Future proofing the IT of the Authority
and making more dynamic in line with
our new way of working. Having a single
platform fit for purpose.

Bin wash £70,000

£1,250,000

18.2 It is worth noting the following existing capital budgets. These are balances remaining on budgets for capital
works still in progress/to be commenced, which were previously approved by the Authority and will be rolled
forward until completion or eliminated if not required.

Victoria Road bulking facilities £1,800,000 Representing the capital budget to
complete work to increase bulking
and sorting capacity to enhance and
localise material value and reduce
whole system bulking costs.

West Drayton heating system £150,000 Improve energy efficiency
improvements and window
replacement

Abbey Road improvements £392,000 Electric main gates, replacement
netting for waste transfer station,
heating equipment, essential
weighbridge works, structural repairs
to transfer station, improved reuse
and educational facilities.

Upgrade to finance system £20,000 Agresso
DMR and food recycling £500,000 Increasing options for material
infrastructure at Abbey Road contracts and improving recycling and

diversion rates from residual
treatment. This essentially upgrades
and future proofs Abbey Road for EPR

New weighbridge software £20,000

Resurfacing work at Transport £240,000 Was £290k, but £50k spentin 2023/24
Avenue and Victoria

£3,329,000

18.3 There is a spend of £450,000 for our programme, Social Value and Reuse to be spent on containers on a Reuse
hub. This had been budgeted for in 2023/24 but in error had been omitted from the Authority paper for
budget approval. The containers will be purchased by March 2024 and depreciated over five years, costing
the Authority £90,000 a year. This will be funded via the PPP income retained by West London Waste
Authority.

19 Reserves

19.1 Reserves represent an organisation’s net worth. They provide a buffer for an organisation to manage risks, for
example the fluctuations in the level of activity or costs —these variances in costs lead to surpluses and deficits
being absorbed within reserves. On this basis, the Authority’s approach to reserves has been to build up
sufficient reserves to act as a buffer against risk.

23



19.2 The added benefit of reserves is that they can be used to stabilise pricing by removing the need for “in year”
price reviews. For boroughs and indeed the Authority, this pricing stability / predictability facilitates much
better planning and budgetary control.

19.3 For 2024/25 the proposal for reserves is cautious given the economic climate and continuing uncertainties

resulting from the economy, climate change and legislation.

19.4 Considering reserves in overall terms, identifying known material risks facing an Authority provides a useful
basis for determining a suitable level of reserves for managing risk. The specific risks and potential costs and

likelihood that could be associated with them are as follows:

Risk Description Mitigations Likelihood Financial Risk Reserves to
(£000’s) set aside
(high 100%,
medium
75%, low
50%)
The budget is based on assumptions of Use of reputable High £3,047 £3,047
indexation/ inflation, particularly in relation | forecasts e.g. HM (representing
to contracts. There is a risk of higher costs Treasury approx. 5% of WTD
due to higher than anticipated costs)
indexation/inflation, particularly the impact
of utility prices on prices.
An extremely challenging insurance market | Sum to self-insure High £2,000 £2,000
for the waste sector leading to difficulties should it not be (reconstruction of
in insuring Abbey Road and West Drayton. possible to secure Abbey Road)
some/all insurances
Increased regulation of emissions from Contract terms High £2,000 £2,000
energy from waste facilities requiring one
off installation of equipment
Borough FCL tonnages are higher than Using data and Medium £1,600 (based on £1,200
budgeted resulting in an under-recovery of | working closely with residual FCL
HRRC disposal costs through the FCL charge | borough colleagues tonnages at 20% in
which is fixed to try and forecast excess of budgeted
tonnages accurately levels)
Industrial action creating site and waste Contract terms, Medium £990 £743
flow disruption contractor business representing 1 day
continuity plans and per month
contingency disruption for 12
arrangements, months affecting
insurances 650 tonnes of
recycling per day
needing to be sent
to EfW @£115
disposal and £12
haulage
The PPP income to pay to boroughs does Contract terms Low £6,300 £3,150
not materialise e.g. electricity prices don’t
remain high and windfall tax is applied
Costs arising from the complex PPP Team and Low £1,000 (based on £500

contract as a result of terms that are
unclear or ambiguous in relation to the day
to day operation and running of services.

professional advisors

with experience and
knowledge of

experience of
contractual issues)

24




detailed contract
terms
With a large number of competitors ready Ongoing monitoring Low £550 (representing | £225
to receive trade waste, there is a risk that of trade income and 20% of trade
price competition could lead to a reduction | maintaining income
in planned trade and construction income competitive pricing
despite more competitive pricing position in market
place
Waste reduction in line with WLWA's One third of PPP High £9,915 £9,915
projects and funded programmes do not income retained by
reduce waste meaning that levies must be | WLWA to support in
increased significantly when the Emissions | waste minimisation
Trading Scheme goes live. It may be and circular
necessary to build infrastructure to provide | economy.
future resilience.
Residual waste risks - fluctuation in ETS Work with boroughs High £3,250 £3,250
charge to Authority. Fluctuation predicted | to engage with representing a
to be £10m / 400,000 tonnes in year due to | Authority on funded build-up of
the volatility in carbon credit (as this is programmes. reserves over the
treated like a market commodity). Risk next 3 years before
that the Authority could be impacted from ETS goes live in
this if Boroughs do not reduce fossil carbon 2028.
in residual waste.
Target level for reserves to manage risks £26,029

19.5 The target level of reserves for 2024/25 is £26.0 million and relates to the immediate risks relevant to the
financial year’s activities. This compares to £10.3 million of risks in 2022/23. The main changes relate to the
Emissions Trading Scheme and the PPP income set aside to drive waste reduction rapidly, and therefore
increase savings for boroughs. These are detailed below.

19.6 The Emissions Trading Scheme will be brought in to cover waste plants from 2028 and will levy an additional
cost of c. £18 million per annum at the current volume and composition. This equates to £3 million per
borough, per year and will need to be factored in to Borough reserves.

19.7 The Emissions Trading Scheme will be levied against fossil carbon products such as soft plastics, textiles and
e-waste. Our ability to segregate fossil based plastic is currently only through resident engagement. To
mitigate the potential impact and ensure we have the requisite capacity we need to design and invest in
infrastructure to segregate effectively in new facilities capable of sorting material and retaining value locally
where possible. If we don’t develop our infrastructure, the additional money will simply go to funding
penalties, not creating a solution.

19.8 The capture services and waste sites require change, our infrastructure is struggling at the moment with
capacity across Borough transfer stations, HRRCs and collection services (e.g. recycling, residual). More
segregation of materials and more sorting will be required to extract specific streams within the residual waste
such as plastics and textiles.

19.9 Further opportunities will be identified to invest in local infrastructure to develop greater service resilience,
reduce costs and create local jobs. The wider development of treatment, sorting, repair and handling capacity
will help the creation of a circular economy with improved regional resource and value retention.

19.10 There is also a risk associated with residual waste not decreasing and this could see the charge from the
Emissions Trading Scheme fluctuate considerably. Early commentary is stating that this charge could vary by
£10 million each year dependent on the carbon tax. The Authority has set aside sums to build up against this
fluctuation should fossil carbon in residual not decrease.

25



19.11 The PPP income retained by WLWA is to be used for developing our waste minimisation and circular
economy activities. These have been designed to reduce waste and mitigate against increase in costs that will
affect the six boroughs in the near future (i.e. Emissions Trading Scheme (ETS)). Should boroughs not engage
in the programmes and residual waste does not decrease, the income retained will need to be built up to
support against large penalties, and the need for larger sites and infrastructure to manage the waste (i.e. to
be able to remove plastics from waste).

19.12 We also have reserves set aside to cover self-insuring the Authority for their business insurances, and
insuring Abbey Road HRRC and the West Drayton office should we not have any appetite from the insurance
market. We have also set aside the PPP income retained by the Authority to cover waste minimisation and
circular economy activities, and set aside reserves to cover the volatility of the Emissions Trading Scheme and
the fluctuations the waste industry could face.

19.13 Insurance within the waste industry has become extremely challenging due to the nature of the business,
and the general insurance market are not too keen. The complexity of insurers not being forthcoming in the
market is explained in section 9. Should the Authority self-insure, the revenue benefit to boroughs recognised
will be £165,000.

19.14 Ultimately, the level of reserves is a judgment based on the nature of risk facing an organisation and its risk
appetite. On the basis of the risks identified above and appreciating that there are unknown risks which could
materialise and that nothing is being set aside for longer term risks, the proposed level represents a prudent
and not overly cautious target for reserves for 2024/25 activities.

19.15 The forecast reserve position for the year ending 31 March 2025 is:

Reserves to | PPP Total

manage Income Reserves

risks £000’s | £000s £000s
Total Reserves 31 March 2023 75,964 9,915 85,879
Less Revaluation Reserve (artificial gain/not realisable) (52,732) (52,732)
Less ear marked reserves (HRRC fund) (809) (809)
Less disbursement of prior year reserves (3,300) (3,300)
Reserves 31 March 2023 19,123 9,915 29,038
Forecast surplus/(deficit) 23/24 (1,064) 0 (1,064)
PPP income expected (2023/24) 6,300 6,300
PPP income share for boroughs (2023/24) (4,200) (4,200)
Reserves 31 March 2024 18,059 12,015 30,074
PPP income committed for WLWA programme of work 0 (2,367) (2,367)
Forecast surplus 2024/25 0 0 0
Forecast position for 31 March 2025 18,059 9,648 27,707

19.16 In the table above the reserves have been split out to provide transparency of the build-up and use of
reserves generated from PPP income. The above table shows the expected PPP income of £6.3 million being
shared in accordance with the Finance Strategy. £4.2 million will be paid to boroughs following receipt of funds
from the contractor (July 2024) and £2.1 million retained by the Authority.

19.17 Provided that no risks materialise the closing reserves balance to manage risks of £27 million (inclusive of
the one third PPP income retained by WLWA) is close to the reserves needed to manage risks. It is proposed
that there are no excess reserves to be disbursed back to boroughs.

19.18 In comparison other London waste Authorities hold reserves ranging from £31 million to £86 million. This
reflects the Authority’s strong history of passing on excess reserves to boroughs.

26



19.19 The Authority will conduct a formal review of reserves in July 2024, and at this point, any surplus reserves
not required to manage risks will be disbursed back to boroughs by September 2024.

19.20 A further £1.24 million will be utilised for the programmes identified in 20234/24 to be funded from the
PPP income retained by WLWA. The total budget for the programmes is £2.8 million over the three years.

20 Medium and Long Term Plan

20.1 The plan has been updated to incorporate the proposed budget and uses long term base case assumptions of
0.5% for the annual growth in residual tonnages to reflect population increases, and 3.0% for long term
inflation (3.0% was used last year) which is higher than the long term HM Treasury target of 2.0%.

20.2 The key outputs can be found in Appendix 1 and this shows a healthy financial position. The assumptions are
then flexed to identify the key factors effecting the Authority’s finances. This identifies changes in the residual
waste tonnages as the key strategic factor determining the growth in costs and levies. Inflation has less impact
(although still significant) as a cost driver as a result of the dampening effect of the PPP contract pricing
mechanism.

20.3 The key messages from the plan are consistent with last year and are positive.

e The volume of residual waste is the key driver of spend/levies, so its reduction should be a key area
of strategic focus e.g. removing food waste from the residual waste stream being an important
opportunity

e The effect of inflation is dampened by the PPP contract

e The Authority will be debt free at the end of the plan and will maintain healthy cash balances to
manage any liquidity risk

21 Borough Responses to Budget Consultation

21.1 The formal borough responses to the 2024-25 budget proposals from borough Finance Directors can be found
in appendix 2. Responses were received from four boroughs and there were three common themes (i.e. raised
by 2 or more boroughs).

21.2 One common theme related to an interest in budgeted programmes of work funded from PPP income and in
particular what has been delivered to date, the plans and potential savings. The business cases and process
have been developed in collaboration with borough Environment colleagues and updates have been
presented throughout the year to boroughs.

21.3 The table below demonstrates progress to date with boroughs. The Authority will continue to engage with
boroughs to drive and deliver savings as per the programmes.

Savings made in 2023-24 Savings targets 2024-25 Discussions scheduled
SP1 Citizen Brent £152k materials collection | None received. Hounslow 12 Jan.
Perception service. Ealing 29 Jan 24.
SP2 Reuse Social WLWA £275k passed back to Ealing CE hub in Acton Hounslow 12 Jan.
Value participating Boroughs. (social value) Ealing 29 Jan 24.
WLWA social value from reuse.
SP3 Data Driven Brent £400k collections None received. Ealing 29 Jan 24.
Efficiency efficiencies

27



SP4 Increased In-Borough food waste recycling | Final opportunity to spend | Ealing 29 Jan 24.
access to excellent | savings realised through PaYT food waste funding.
services levy. Coffee pod trial

Communal recycling

21.4 The second common theme was around how the £18m per annum (£3m per borough) to pay towards the ETS
had been modelled. This has been calculated further to presentations from the ESA which factored in three
key variables; number of tonnes processed at the EfW, fossil carbon tonnes in waste and the carbon price per
tonne. This assumption will continue to be reviewed as further modelling work takes place and an industry
consensus emerges.

21.5 The third common theme is around the PPP income and if the amount received is higher than budgeted, two
thirds of the total will be shared with the borough as per the Finance Strategy.

22 Financial Implications

22.1 These are included in the report.

22.2 ltis a statutory requirement for the Authority to set a balanced budget (Local Government Finance Act 1992)
and to set the levy for constituent boroughs by 15 February (Joint Waste Disposal Authorities (Levies)
Regulations 2006).

23 Legal Implications

23.1 There are no legal implications of this report.

Contact Officers Sapna Dhanani, Finance Manager

sapnadhanani@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

lan O’Donnell, Treasurer

ianodonnell@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

Emma Beal, Managing Director

emmabeal@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

28



mailto:sapnadhanani@westlondonwaste.gov.uk
mailto:ianodonnell@westlondonwaste.gov.uk
mailto:emmabeal@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

Appendix 1

Outputs

Using the proposed budget and base assumptions, the medium and long term financial model then gives us some
outputs, for example, how our costs (and consequently levies to boroughs) change over time, or how our loan
and cash balance changes over time. The main outputs are provided below and illustrate that affecting residual
waste tonnages is the key.

Tonnage — The chart below illustrates the impact of the base assumption of 0.5% annual growth in residual

tonnage to reflect population growth. Over the life of the plan, the residual tonnage rises from 416,951 to 456,115
tonnes.

Residual tonnage

250,000 === Residual tonnage

Q
S Ny

0%

O ay D A% 49 a0 S WD Y
O S Praloa o R s

:\ \’b\";\\

OV SOV 4 e N 400 A

VO PPPGPI PO PP
O AD7 AD ADT AR AR AR Q

D R
My
7 > v AN

g

A

Overall expenditure — This equates to the total levies charged to boroughs and the chart below has been split to
show the PAYT and FCL as well as the total. The chart illustrates the growth in overall expenditure and levies over
time.

It should be noted that the increase in insurances and the impact of emissions trading scheme (ETS) have not

been added in to the medium and long term financial model. Insurance has been set aside within reserves, as
has the impact of ETS through the funded programmes which should see fossil carbon in residual waste decrease.

Total Levy / Expenditure (£000s)

-
[Ty
o n b a
120,000 nom 8’ 8 ] o 3
- N * < [¥=] @ = —
o ®m 2 T o F 9= 9N s v g7 -
o ¢ ¥ &~ ¥ 83 = T 5 o 9§ & @9
100,000 o ¥ 49 v T o ~ g—o—&——@
('] o =] L @ — [ 0 o0
o~ ] i o [s) . w0 0
I m ~ ~ P~
80,000 ™~ ™ R
e PAYT levy
60,000
e [ C| charge
40,000 Total
20,000
0
O 0 DN O W WD W) WP X WO WO A D WO W D D
IO I L\ i RS G G G RN RS R P\ R\ @0\ Qb;\,\
O S S S O S S S S S S SIS S SIS G S LA

29



This chart above illustrates an average annual growth of 2.2% over the long-term which is lower than the 3.5%
underlying long term growth assumptions in the plan, principally inflation RPIX (3.0%) and annual growth in
tonnages (0.5%) to reflect population rises.

This growth is contained as a result of the way the PPP contract is structured. Inflation is dampened on a large
proportion of tonnages over the whole life of the contract.

9
6

90,000

[=2]
I~
< g1
[32] [=2]
o ~

<
3
m—-.
@
©

—
[=)]

The dampened growth in costs and levies is further illustrated in the medium term in the chart below.
Levies (£000s)
<
- Q

3
A © N3
A
- o &
S ™ @ @
gl N ~ m
h 2 |h |h

2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30

80,000

72,220

[=]
I 8,215

70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000

W 2024/25 budget setting  m 2023/24 budget setting

The table above shows an average growth in levies of 2.1% per year over the next 5 years. The change in the

chart reflects the high starting point due to 2024/25 inflation (6.5%) and the higher longer term projection of
inflation of 3%. In this context, containing the long term growth demonstrates the strength of the Authority’s
finances. Boroughs may want to consider using this as an estimate of the increase in the WLWA levies within

their medium term financial plans.

Debt / long-term liabilities and cash — The following chart illustrates the movement in the debt / long-term
liabilities as they are paid / settled. The repayments commence at a low level and progress at increasingly larger
sums, resulting in the debt/long term liability curve. The effect of the financing is reflected in the cash balances
which build up in early years and fall in later years.

Cash / Debt (£000s)

200,000
180,000
160,000
140,000
120,000
100,000
80,000
60,000
40,000

20,000 /

0

e Cash

= Debt/Long Term Liability

© O N A D © > O N O
& <o\q’ fo\"’ ’\\” q;\q’ 0>\°’ 0\% ~,\°’ '1,\0’ '& \>\°’ <o\°’ & '\\°’ q;@ o Q@\b‘ & N
ANPGRS RS R B P P ISP PSS

At the end of the plan, the Authority will be debt free.

30



Sensitivity Analysis

The two tables below illustrate that the impact of the change in residual waste volumes is the key driver of
costs/levies with changes in inflation having a much smaller impact. This is because the effect of inflation is
considerably dampened by the long term PPP contract.

Residual tonnages.

Residual waste growth Average rise in costs / levies
assumption over 5 years
-5% -3.9%

-2% -0.6%

-1.5% -0.1%

-1% 0.4%

-0.5% 1.0%

0% 1.5%

0.5% base 2.1%

1% 2.6%

1.5% 3.1%

2% 4.7%

5% 6.9%

Similarly for residual contract inflation (RPIX).

Residual contract inflation Average rise in costs / levies
RPIX over 5 years

1% 1.8%

2% 1.9%

3% base 2.1%

4% 2.2%

5% 2.3%

6% 2.5%

31



Appendix 2

Official

Fenella Mermy
Executive Direcior of Finance
Phone: (020) B871 5370

Emall: Fenela. Memyifrchmondandwandswaorth. gow.uk

1 LRy MOA MORCH G O
N RN TTPON T AMES

F January 2024

lan O'Connell

Treasurer

West London Waste Authority
Linit &, Bratarnnia Court,

The Green, West Cirayton,
LIBT 7PN

Dear lam,
West London Waste Authority draft 202425 budget

Thank you for your letter dated 1% Decemiber 2023 seeking written views on the draft budgst
and lewy for the forthcoming year. My comments are as follows:

1) Uss of Councll Tax Base for Flesd Cost Levy apportionmant
Richmand wouwd (ke to confirm that the approved Councll Tax base for 2024025 |5 89,675
2) Flzed Cost Lewy [FCL)

In the 2024725 draft report, iable 16.2 uses the 202324 Councll Tax Base and therefore this needs
{0 be updated using the 2024725 Councll Tax Base Niguwe provided above.

3) PPP Incoms

For 2023124 the budgeted disbursement 10 bomowghs of PPP Income was £6.3m. The actual
disbursement In July 2023 was £12.725m. For 2024725 the budgeted disbursement Is £4.2m.
Although the expected Income Is discussad In paragraph 17.6, can you explain the rationale for the
reduction in expected PPP disbursements compared to the previous year?

KMany thanks Tor your assistance with these matters.

Yours sincersly

q t.l | - I'|,.'|.-;.'.|"|."'.-|
|

LS A

Fenella Mesmy
Exacutive DNrector of Finance

_—-;_________——-

v richmond. gos uk
London Ecrough of Richmond upon Trames
Civic Cenfre, 44 YOOk Street, Twickennam TW1 382
Tl 020 BES 1411

32




’i‘l
rﬂ""f"?&n
e} L ';_-.

HHILLINGDON

Eapna Dhanani
Finance Manmager, West London Waste Authority

cio SapnalDhananif@westlondonwaste gov.uk

2™ January 2024

Dear Sapna,

RE: West London Waste Authority (WLWA) Levy Consultation 2024/25

Thank you for your email of 47 December 2022, which sought the views of constiluent
authorities on the 2024/25 draft budget and levy as outlined in the report.

Hillingdon welcomes the early anticipation of PPP income and proposal to distribute to Boroughs
by September 2024, noting the retention of £2.1m to fund strategic prejects and would suggest
that any further PPP income arising at year-end should also be considered for inclusicn in the
disbursement.

Hillingdon would appreciate further clarity on what has been delivered to date on the three
programmes of work being funded from retained by PPP income further to the information
included in the report at paragraphs 12.10-12.12. This should include the potential future year
benefits and how these are expected to be shared across the constituent Boroughs.

The 2024/25 WLWA target level for rezserves to manage risks as per the table at paragraph 159.4
is £26.0m representing a significant uplift on the £10.3m for the 2023/24 budget. A significant
element of thiz iz attributable to the retention of PPP income to support waste minimisation and
the circular economy (£9.9m) and the residual waste risks from the Emissions Trading Scheme
(ETS) of £3.25m. It would be helpful to have further details on how the potential impact of the
ETS of £15m per annum quoted at paragraph 19.6 has been modelled. The report outlines that
the retained PPP income will be used for waste minimisation activities but there is little change
im the overall PPP income reserve balance between 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2025 baszed
on the table at paragraph 19.15, aside from monies already allocated to existing programmes.

The significant increase in Insurance costs of SERC and transfer station is noted but these are
now included in the budget together with a specific Insurance risk reserve of £2m. Similarly, the

™
Finance Directorate 2&' I
T.01895 656074 F.041B95 250874 L ¥

AEvans2@hillingdon gov.uk  www_hillingdon._gov_uk PRERE I 1N PG
London Borough of Hillingdon,
4HF0&, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UBS 10w

33



report advizes that 6.5% has been applied to contractor prices within the budgeted spend to
provide for inflation with a specific reserve providing a further sum of £3m. The reserve schedule
also continues to hold a sum of £3.15m against a risk of the PPP income not materialising at
year-end.

While Hillingdon accepts the principle of refaining reasonable levels of reserves to offzet
operational risk the report nofes at paragraph 19.2 *._.the proposal for reserves is caufious™. We
would suggest that a more balanced approach is apprepriate given that the constituent
authorities face a very challenging local government financial settlement for 2024/25 and remain
under significant financial pressure.

Yours sincerely,

(fF—=

Andy Evans
Corporate Director of Finance

C.C. Clir Eddie Lgyvery — Cabinet Member — Environment, Housing & Planning
Micola Herbert — Head of Waste Services
Cer Lamaurews — Head of Finance, Place

[ )

34



>’ HARROW

chief Executive Directorate, Finance Division
Sharon Daniels, Interim Director of Finance and Assurance

lan O'Donnell

Treasurer

West London Waste Authority
Unit & Britannia Court

The Green

West Drayton

UBT 7TFM

41 January 2024

Dear lan

Thank you for your letter of 4th December 2023, which sought the views of constituent boroughs on the
2024125 draft budpet.

FAYT and FCT Levy Incresse

The total increase in the cost of the levy for Harmow for 2024/25 is £517k which is split between an increase in
the combined PAYT lewy of £348k and an increase in the FCL charge of E171k.

Unfortunately, the notification of this increase has come after Harmow's 2024/25 Draft Revenue budget has
been agreed and presented fo cabinet in Decamber and therefore this increase in the WLWA levy will show
&8s an increase to the 2024/25 Budaet when Harrow's Final Budget is agreed in February 2024,

Having reviewed the 2023/24 budget proposal (sent last December 2022), this was indicating an inflation
increase of 1.68% for the 2024/25 WLWA budget proposals. The effect of this for Harmow would equate to an
spproximate increase of £150k in levy costs for 2024725 as opposed to the £517k now notified.

Harrow have also forecast a reduction in the residual waste tonnage rates from 54,5829 in 2023/24 o 53.538
in 2024/25 and therefore this should have also pointed to a favpurahle reduction in the PAYT element of the
fae.

Whilst it is explained that the increase in the levy for 2024/25 is an average 8% increase, which is significantly
higher than the forecast 1.6% presented last year as part of the 2023724 draft budget, there seems to have
been no communication of this increase prior to the 4 December 20237 Can you let me know if this is the
case or whether you have provided any previous information as to the likely increase in the 2024/25 levy prior
to the 4 December 20237

address London Borough of Harrow, Forward Drive, Harrow, HA3 BFL
tel D20 Bxoex ok email xxo@ harrow_gov.uk web wanw.

m

Narmow. gov. LK

35



E 1 .“j A/
¥y HARROW
Erparsmme of work funded by PPP Income

Section 3 highlights the £2.8m programme of works funded from the PPP income that will deliver financial
benefits to the Boroughs in the form of long-term savings. How will Councils be able to factor in the proposed
=savings from the £2.8m investment in the Brooramome of works. Do you have a schedule of the estimated
savings/benefits that can be built in to assist Councils in their budgeting process?

Incresse in Imsurance costs — para 8.2 to 9.8

There has been an increase in the budget of £1.2m for insurance costs as a result in an increass in costs
from £0.Zm to £1.4m. Para 8.4 references higher insurance premiums due to increased fires at transfer
stations which has been budgeted for in 2024/25.

FPara. 8.6 says £0.8m of this spend is for the programme of works detsiled in section 3. Can you clarify what
this means as it seems fo relste to the insurance cost?

Also, can you clanfy if the £1.4m budget for insurance includes an amount for insuring Abbey Road and West
Drayton as there has been a £2m reserve set up to self-insure “should it not be possible to secure some/sll

insurances”.

PPF Income paid out to Boroughs.

Given the financial challenges in our MTFS, | welcome the Authority’'s decision to include the anticipated PPP
income in the 2024/25 budget as Harrow had already made a budget assumption of some further PFF
income in setting cur draft budget. This therefore provides a level of certainty of the disbursement that will be
made to Harrow. it would also be helpful if the Authority could provide a reconcilistion once the actual PPP
income is confirmed. Any PPP income over and above the £4.2m budgeted to be paid out should be
distributed as a further in-year payment fo boroughs.

Beserves

There has been a substantial increase in the level of reserves of £15.7m, increasing from £10.3m in 2023/24
to £28m in 2024/25. The main observation/guestions on the reserves are as follows:

» A financial risk of £3.15m is allocated within the target level of reserves to mitigate against PPP
income not being materialised. which is gategorised as low likelihood of risk. The intention is o
distribute PPP income in September 2024, Therefore, if this risk does not matepalise by September
2024, the reserve should be released and the £3.15m disbursed to boroughs.

# There is an amount of £2m in reserves for self-insurance of the reconstruction of Abbey Road. If
insurance becomes available and it is not necessary to selfinswe, this amount should be released
from the reserve and reallocated to boroughs.

#  Reserves includes £2.815m to mitigate the risk of when the Emission trading scheme goes Ive. Whilst
there are calculations to show how other figures have been amived at in the financial risk column of
the reserves table, there is no detail of the £8.815m. Can you supply how this was calculated as itis a
substantial value and it's not clear what the relationship is between this figure and the 2028 deadline

for the Emissions Trading Scheme.

HA3 8FL

N Narmow. gow LK

address London Borough of Harrow,
tel 020 Bxoor Xoex email o har

36



i

e s LONDON BOROUGH O

< HARROW

#» Residual waste risk relating to a fluctuation in The ETS scheme includes £3.250m within the reserves.
What is this figure based on? What does the reference to "a hyildug of reserves over the next 3 years
mean"? Does this mean further sums will be set aside for the next two years as well.

#» Paragraph 18.8 of your budget report mentions £3m per borough will need to be factored into Borough
reserves. If the estimated cost is £18m pa, this would equate to a £2m annual budget growth for each

borough rather tham it being factored into Borough reserves. Can you confirm that you are suggesting
that each Borough would need to factor in £3m growth into their budget and from which year?

fours sincerely

4 oni)

Sharon Daniels

Interim Director of Finance & Assurance

HA3Z BFL
rw_harrow.gov.uk

address London Borough of Harrow, Forward Drive, Harrow
tel 020 Bk Ko email xxo@ harrow_gov.uk web w

37



RESOURCES DEPARTMENT m

www saling.gov.uk

Ealing Coungil
Perceval House
14-16 Lixbridge Road
London W5 2HL

BY EMAIL Tel 02088257175
9 January 2024

Di=ar [an
West London Waste Authority (WLWA) draft 2024/ 25 budget

Many thanks for your letter of 4 December seeking written views on the
draft budget for the forthcoming financial year. I have reviewed and
discussed the proposals with finance and service colleagues and am
writing to provide comments on behalf of Ealing Council [the Coundil). I
apologise that I have not been able to do so within your requested
deadline.

Inflation

Whilst clearly the increase in levies is a challenge for the Council in
balancing its own budget and in general the Council would seek to
minimise such increases, the paper sets out the reasens for the
increases and spechically the inflationary pressures experienced by the
WLWA which is a result of the wider economic environment,

The report does provide some information on inflation assumptions
{including a correction for prior year estimates}, However, it would be
useful to provide some further detail of the analysis, For example the
report explains the PPP contract mechanism dampening the impact of
inflation and goes on to explain the use of 6.5% for other contracts in
2024725, Given falling levels of inflation it is difficult understand
whether this is a reasonable estimate of contractual inflation without an
understanding of which other contracts are subject to inflationary
increases and what the contractual mechanisms are [2g. what index, at
what point in the year). However given the economic uncertainty, and
that these contracts are likely to be less significant than the PRP
contract, the assumptions appear to be prudent and the approach taken
reasonable. However, if, due to falling inflation, contractual inflation is
not required to the extent budgeted this should be identified through in-
year monitoring and the budget setting process for 2023/26 and would
therefore flow through to future year levy calculations.

; o By, "
F TACKLING i
k! THE CLIMETE .'.:“":I": g‘ﬁ?
g

38



We note that whilst the increase is mitigated in part by the PPP income
distribution in 2024/25, the inflationary impact is an ongoing cost which
is being mitigated only in the short term through a windfall gain that
can not be relied on in the medium-long term. Therefore a robust
approach to awarding inflationary increases should be undertaken to
keep future years levy increases to a minimum.

In addition, as a result of high inflation, interest rates are high and with
increasing reserves [and therefore cash) balances, we might have
expected to see some commentary of the impact and budget for
interest receivable on the 2024/25 budget.

PPP income

We welcome the commitment to return twe thirds of the PPP income to
the boroughs in line with the previously agreed strategy and the WLWA
managing risks on this income in 2024/25 through reserves. This
cartainty is helpful to enable Ealing (the Council} to factor the receipt
inte the Coundl's budget setting process.

In 2023724, the PPP income was significantly higher than budgeted,
with the additional income shared with boroughs on the same basis
(two thirds distributed to the boroughs). The paper confirms that the
WLWA will take the risk on the outturn position and that additional
income will also be shared in line with the agreed strategy, which is also
welcoma.,

It would be useful to understand the level of risk [or opportunity) to PPP
income through an understanding of the contractual mechanism
(particularly in relation to timing due to the volatility in energy prices).
For example does the 2024/25 income relate to energy generated and
sold by the contractor the previous financial year [2023/24) or does the
budget rely on projected energy prices?

We are generally supportive of the WLWA retention of a third of the PPP
income for strategic projects, where projects which add value to the
boroughs can be identified and delivered and we are keen to ensure
that the Coundil is able to benefit from these projects through close
partnership working and engagement. However, in the event these
balances increase further, they should be kept under review and
retained only to the extent that they can continue to be used to deliver
value to the boroughs or whether they would be better distributed to
boroughs for local decision,

39




Other

The report references the Emissions Trading Scheme which could lead
to significant budgetary implications for WLWA and the boroughs. Given
the potentially significant impact and the opportunities for the WLWA
and boroughs to mitigate this (through reduction in residual waste), it
would be useful for the WLWA to fadilitate a workshop (with finance and
service leads) on these matters so that the WLWA and boroughs can
factor into medium term projections and consider what action and
investments may be required.

Finally, as referenced in the report, the FCL costs and PPP income will
be apporticned on the basis of the respective coundil tax bases. We
expect to approve the 2024/25 council tax base in the next week at
which point we will inform you of cur updated figure.

Yours sinceraly

Emily Hill
Strategic Director of Resources

40



Aacenda Iltem 5
Pages 41 to 48

WEST LONDON WASTE AUTHORITY
Report of the Managing Director 19 January 2024

WLWA 2023-24 Business Plan
SUMMARY

This report provides an update on the strategic priorities that form the basis for the
Authority’s Business Plan for 2022/23. The key points are:

e The structural changes resulting from the Business Plan 2023-24 and the employee
engagement and stakeholder surveys are almost complete. Recruitment and resourcing
is challenging, there are four vacancies at the Managers level (more than half).

e The structure changes will increase resilience, capacity and capability in the future which
is vital for this next period of multiple and complex legislative changes. The Environment
Act 2021 regulations consultations results are now published by Defra. The Emissions
Trading Scheme is still in consultation phase and will be the most significant financial
challenge relating to waste for WLWA and therefore Boroughs in the near future. Further
modelling is needed, projections at the moment indicate it could be as much as £3m per
Borough per annum.

e Strategic priority 5 Organisational Excellence is embedded and progressing. It will
provide a stable base for strategic priorities 1-4 which are delayed to varying extents and
will be re-drafted for 2024-25.

e Investment in strategic priorities 1-4 has been delayed, Boroughs savings targets
provided for 2022-23 have been met and WLWA driven savings have also been realised.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
The Authority is asked to:-
1) Note the substantial financial risk posed by the emissions trading scheme.

2) Note the request for Borough savings targets to drive the priorities and Members are
asked to encourage Borough Environment Directors and Finance Directors to help shape
the 2024-25 programmes.

1. Background

Since 2019, the Joint Municipal Waste Management Plan and consequently the West London
Waste Authority business plan has focused on outcomes and joint working whilst we wait for
clarity on environmental legislation and waste regulations.

2. Introduction

This report provides an update on the WLWA 2023-24 Business Plan and the strategic priorities
agreed in the June meeting.

3. Feedback from the Employees engagement survey and stakeholder survey

WLWA received good feedback from the surveys and recognition of a high performing team but
with indicators of overstretch and disenga1411ent which resulted in intervention to prevent



slippage. Resourcing remains a concern, with four recruitments needed at the Managers level
(more than half), three of which are vacant currently. The recommendations and actions are
largely complete and shown in Appendix 1.

4. 2023-24 Business Plan update

It was reported to the June Authority that using five strategic priorities we will start to invest in
and initiate the change of West London’s waste management model. It was reported to the
September Authority that the structure of the organisation, accountability and responsibility for
the delivery model of the strategic priorities was being reviewed. The objectives for Strategic
Priority 5 were re-written, the senior leadership team has been restructured so that responsibility
for people, systems and governance is reallocated and the control functions are shared. All
SLT roles will be responsible individually for their own operations and collectively for the
organisational support functions. This creates a more evenly balanced team and a strong
succession or growth plan. The results of the action plan are in appendix 2. The strategic
priorities are shown in appendix 3.

Strategic Priority 5 Organisational Excellence

The governance role has been vacant since Oct 23, two recruitment cycles were completed and
in both cases the chosen candidate accepted the position but was unable to take up the post.
Progress is being made in this area with available resources. The action plan and expected
end of year outcome is shown below:

STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE;
PRIORITY: i b 2
5P5; ORGANISATIONAL By the end of 2023/24 This is of importanca to WLWA We will know we have achieved this, if by the
EXCELLENCE we want to have, becausa; end of 2023/24 we have,
1. Established charters of behaviour = [Investment in our people, 1. Delivered charters with high lavels of
Invest in, and improve, our within teams eg 51T, Managers systems and govemanca compliant behaviour, G
people (1-3), spstems (4-6) Group, and the strategic priorities underping all of the othar 2. Agreed updated HR policies and reported
end governance {7-5) to feams.. priorities back through Lattice reporting and T
drive greater outcomes. 2. Delivered a self-service HR system for  +  They support the building of appraisals,
Managers and employees, thee culture we want at the 3. Reported employees annual feedback, G
ACCOUNTABLE: Emma 3. Increased the management skills of core of the organisation. 4. Agreed the IT strategy at all levals in
RESPONSIALE: Managers and Leaders. *  They help us differentiate Members. G
Tom (People) 4. Created an I strategy. ::;:f:“ BE B0 SO O 5. Reported monthly on use of Pawer B G
Supana (Systems] F ::Id:':"!d Tm:.s::mldara Eysbain w  Each slement crestes s stable S g [Indviduol, Imanoger gy,
Peter (Governante) Sipsbindasbntie b base from whithto delivera. 5~ Agreed a draft housa style for data G
6. Increased the data decision making great service to each other reparting and visualisation,
and data visualisation competencies A SN CAEGTS. 7. Ruvievead th usa of thie Ning Habits of
ofal empiciees. s Uiimately, they enable us to Trust, Five steps of Critical thinking, |
7. Established informal policies, dallvar on nue stratagy. intend ta”, caar.n.lng, Lean and Six Sigma, A
processes and procedures of Data driven decision making and Insights,
EOvernance. 8. Agreed a draft plan to update formal
8. Reviewed the formal governance governance rules, policies and A
rules, policies and procedures procedures.
9. Increased the governance skills of 9. Recorded agendas, minutes and decision
Managers and Leaders. making at 5LT and Managers group. A

Strategic Priorities 1 - 4

It was reported to the September meeting that strategic priorities 1-4 are being updated and
refined by the accountable owners. This review indicated that few savings targets had been
sent to WLWA in 2023. As a result every Borough was offered budget meetings in Q3 to discuss
and agree savings targets for 2024-25 ahead of WLWA budgeting. It is expected that more
meetings and / or savings targets can be identified during the Boroughs’ budget setting process.

42



The Borough savings targets create joint ownership and development of programmes that are
funded by the priorities. The current status of targets setting / discussions is:

Savings made in 2023-24

Savings targets 2024-25

Discussions scheduled

None received.

Hounslow 12 Jan.

SP1 Citizen Brent £152k materials

Perception collection service. Ealing 29 Jan 24.
SP2 Reuse WLWA £275k passed back to | Ealing CE hub in Acton Hounslow 12 Jan.
Social Value participating Boroughs. (social value) Ealing 29 Jan 24.

WLWA social value from
reuse.

£100k Hounslow Space
Waye

SP3 Data Driven
Efficiency

Brent £400k collections
efficiencies

None received.

Ealing 29 Jan 24.

SP4 Increased
access to
excellent services

In-Borough food waste
recycling savings realised
through PaYT levy.

Final opportunity to
spend food waste
funding.

Ealing 29 Jan 24.

Coffee pod trial
Communal recycling

The 2024-25 Business Plan will be provided to the March 2024 Authority meeting.
5. Financial Implications

There has been one new cost associated with the updates and changes since the September
Finance report. Pension strain costs have been recognised now to avoid future pressure. The
total expected cost additional to budget is:

£2,500 spent on the Leaders and Managers two away days

Diversity, equality and inclusion workshop - £TBC <£5,000

People centric workshop with employees - £TBC < £5,000

£37,000 redundancy costs including HR consultancy and support, the remainder
was mitigated by salary savings.

o £136,000 pension strain costs.

(0]

(@]

(@]

Programmes have delayed spending, but have made budgeted savings within joint programmes
and within WLWA control. This will continue to be reported by the Projects Director.

The cost risk of the emissions trading scheme will take effect from 2028 and is expected to be
substantial risk. The working cost assumption for now is up to £3m per Borough per year. This
assumption will continue to be reviewed as modelling work takes place and an industry
consensus emerges.

6. Staffing Implications

The Authority is moving from a functional to a cross functional method of working to build
capacity and capability. A further update

7. Risk Management

Additional focus is being given to recruitment and staff shortages as per risk item 3 in the risk
register.

43



8. Legal Implications

The Regulations to follow the Environment Act 2021 have not yet been published although the
results of the consultations are now known. The updates to the Emissions Trading Scheme are
due for further consultation. This creates uncertainty for an organisation such as WLWA which
wants to support individual Boroughs as best it can but has no clarity of funding, legislative
support or targets.

9. Impact upon the Environment Directors priorities
The strategic priorities in the business plan deliver on the Environment Directors priorities
agreed in September 2022.

10.Impact on Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy
The business plan will deliver on the framework agreed in March 2022.

Achieve this objective...
Waste

e N N

...by tackling [ Food ] Textile waste | | Plastic waste [More Reuse]
\ J . J
( RY4 N

. A Plan for Capture

...with a clear plan 2030 systems 2030
\ J \ J
e ./

...delivered using Data Communications]
\ VAN

...underpinned by

11.Impact upon Carbon reduction
The JMWMS framework agreed in March 2022 uses a waste reduction / circular economy /
decarbonisation approach to mitigate the risk of overspending. This has the co-benefit of
promoting carbon reduction measured as the carbon embedded in waste.

Background Papers

Emma Beal Managing Director 07766 147 978

emmabeal@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

44




Appendix 1 Recommendations following employee engagement survey action plan

Recommendation Action Date RAG
CULTURE
Put specific emphasis on Consider resources during Complete but half A
changing the climate by tackling Budget setting for 2024-25 of manager posts
resource issues and creating are vacant.
something for people to enjoy Half day sports day event. Complete 5 July G
2023
Inclusive Team Meeting with Complete 19 Sept G
Abbey Road Ops. 2023
Reset what the culture needs to Include governance in Complete G
be and bake it into systems and Strategic priority 5. 5 Sept 2023
processes that mean people are Review / implement formal Post remains A
held accountable. and informal governance vacant. Target
improvements. 31 Mar 2024
Address the rise in control and SLT charter and commitment Complete G
its opposing nature to the to Managers to set clear 5 Sept 2023
company values. objectives and measures and
stick to them.
LEADERSHIP
Complete a comprehensive 360 Two away days for Managers | Complete G
on all leaders and managers and Leaders resetting what 4-5 Sept 2023
where honest and candid the culture needs to be.
feedback is provided about each Review Leadership and By end Dec 2023 G
other and over whether people Management structure
are behaving in accordance with | Comprehensive 360 By 31 March 2024 | G
the company values.
CLARITY
Run a workshop with middle Two away days Complete G
managers to understand where Strategic priorities reviewed 4-5 Sept 2023
confusion lies and to identify Clear accountability and
where greater clarity is needed. responsibility for delivery of
the strategic priorities.
Run a workshop with employees Plan using lessons learned TBC G
to understand how the from the Leaders and By 31 March 2024
organisation can become more Managers away days and the
‘people centric’ again. DEI training initiative.
DIVERSITY
Run a DEI training initiative and Suitable training organisation Complete G
discover more about the identified
incidents that led to people
feeling like they have been on Planning call diarised DATE G
the receiving end of
discriminatory behaviour Training initiative and DATE TBC G

feedback

45




Appendix 2 Lessons learned action plan

Need identified Progress RAG
Single point accountability for strategic priorities. | Complete 5 Sept 2023 G
Business planning to inform budget planning 2024- | Complete and reviewed. G
25.
Improve Strategic Priority 5 Organisational | Complete 5 Sept 2023 G
Excellence.
Restructure senior leadership team. Interim arrangements in place. A
Training and development analysis
complete
JDs updated, evaluations in progress.
Review Management structure. Complete on paper A
3 unfilled posts slowing progress
Offer budget savings meetings to all Boroughs Meetings offered to all and held with G

Brent, Harrow and Hillingdon before end
of Dec 2023. Ealing and Hounslow
scheduled for early Jan 2024.

46




Appendix 3 Strategic Priorities

LY

COMPANY
PURPOSE

THE STRATEGIC PYRAMID

COMPANY
VISION/MISSION

COMPANY GOAL

COMPANY
STRATEGIC
PRIORITIES

THEMATIC GOAL

West London Waste

Treatimg wiiste g5 8 vialwpble Fespleres

We exist to be leaders in “tresting waste as a waluable respurce”

We believe in a arbon nevtral West London and cur mission - in pursuit of that vision -
is to areate the new accepted model for how waste and resources are managed;
we are poing to redefine how people perceive and understand waste.

Long-term (5-10 years): A carbon neutral West London

hedium-tzrm {3-5 years): Deliver and prove a repeatable model that changes people’s
understanding of waste, increases access to waste management
services, and improves the perceived value of waste amongst ditizens.

Short-term [twelve monthsl:  Invest in, and initiate, the change of our waste management
model.
1 Citizen perception; Bazeline Wast London citizen's perception of the valus of ‘waste’.

2 Reuse; hegasure and scale up the ‘social value' of reuse’ in order to maximize value and educats more effactivaly.

3 Diata driven effidency; Creats 5 digital twin of waste services to identify and implement improvemsnts.

4 Acress to senvices; Expand food, reuss, e-wasts and textile waste capture 1o include more of West London.

5 Organisational excellence; [nvest in, and improve, our peopls, systems and governance to drive grester outcomes.

Execute, Educate and Celebrate!



8V

Strategic Priority 1;

CITIZEN PERCEPTION

Baseline West London citizen’s
perception of the value of
‘waste'.

Strategic Priority 5;
ORGANISATIONAL EXCELLENCE
Invest in, and improve, our

people, systems and governance ORGANISATIONAL CITIZEN
to drive greater outcomes. EXCELLENCE PERCEPTION

EDUCATE& _ Strategic Priority 2;
- Fa ‘REUSE’ SOCIAL VALUE
INCREASED 1 () [ CEREBRATE g/} op ()5 Messnareanil seslemp tie
Strategic Priority 4; ACCESS SOCIAL VALUE ‘social value’ of ‘reuse’ in

INCREASED ACCESS
Expand food, reuse, e-
waste and textile waste
capture to include more of . DATA DRIVEN
West London. EFFICIENCY

order to maximise value and
educate mare effectively.

Strategic Priority 3;

DATA DRIVEN EFFICIENCY

Create a digital twin of waste services to
identify and implement improvements.




Aaenda Iltem 6

Pages 49 to 52
WEST LONDON WASTE AUTHORITY
Report of the Assistant Director Operations 19 January 2024

Contracts and operations update

SUMMARY

This report provides an update on the Authority’s waste treatment arrangements and
procurements. The key points are:

e Most contracts and operations are performing very well

e The WLER contract performed well despite challenges over the Christmas period

e A change in law has come into force, allowing some DIY waste to be accepted free of
charge at HRRCs.

RECOMMENDATION(S) The Authority is asked to:
1) Note this report

1. Introduction

This report provides an update on WLWA's existing contracts and operations for managing West
London’s waste.

2. Contract performance
The performance of the Authority’s key operational contracts is explained in the following table.

Contractor Service Value | Operations Financial
(per — risk
year) | RAG | Description (RAG)

WLERL, Residual waste £35m Good performance at SERC and the two

operated by | 300 000 tonnes/yr rail linked transfer stations.

Suez A | Site layout changes at Victoria Road and

fewer crane breakdowns have reduced
on-site waiting times.

Viridor Residual waste £14m The contract is operating well.

(Lakeside) 90,000 tonnesl/yr A

BioCollectors | Food waste £0.4m The contract is operating well.

All Boroughs’ food waste
West London | Garden waste £1.5m The contract is operating well.
Composting | Al Boroughs’ garden
waste
N+P Dry mixed recycling £3m The contract is operating well.
From Ealing and Brent

Waste-a- Transporting waste & £1m The contract is operating well.

Way recyclables using bulk

Recycling haulage vehicles.

Suez Transporting waste & £0.5m The contract is operating well.

recyclables using RoRo
vehicles.
1

49



WLERL Operations

Severnside Energy Recovery Centre (SERC) and the two rail linked transfer stations at Brentford
and Ruislip are operating well.

In response to Borough inquiries about queuing times at Ruislip (Victoria Road), Suez (the
operating sub-contractor) has changed the site layout and tipping arrangements which has
significantly reduced on-site waiting times. The ageing waste bunker cranes have experienced
fewer breakdowns since the last report.

WLWA officers continue to work with Borough officers to understand the impact of delays at
Victoria Road on their collection services and residents.

The contractor has recently invested £9.5m in improvements to the Victoria Road site, including
£2m on new waste compactors, £2m on a fire suppression system, £0.5m on an interim fix to the
cranes and £5m on replacing the cranes. Further investments in new weighbridges, new mobile
plant and a new bulking shed are planned for 2024.

The replacement of the Victoria Road waste cranes is scheduled for April 2024 and a
contingency plan has been developed. It is being shared and refined with Borough heads of
service.

During the Christmas period, the contractor suffered from two dropped trains, one due to driver
shortages, and one due to extreme weather. There was also failure of both cranes and a
shredder at Victoria Road, all on the same day. Despite these pressures only minor on-site
tipping delays were reported.

Fires continue to pose a major risk to the transfer stations, although the frequency of fires has
decreased since the last report. The table below shows the number of fires reported at the
transfer stations since 2019/20. With three months of the contract year to go, the number of fires
in 2023/24 has already comfortably exceeded the previous year.

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 YTD
Transport Ave 3 6 7 8 15
Victoria Rd 6 8 13 17 19
Total 9 14 20 25 34

To help tackle fires, the new fire suppression system at Victoria Road, costing £2m, is currently
being commissioned. A similar system is now fully operational at Transport Avenue.

WLWA has established a fire prevention working group which is planning to meet in January.

Viridor
The combination of a mechanical fault and a full waste bunker at Lakeside caused some delays
on Friday 5 January. A contingency site was used until normal service resumed.

As reported in September, the Viridor Lakeside contract is heavily impacted by inflation and is
therefore placing cost pressures on the budget this year. Efficiencies are being made by sending
more waste directly to the Lakeside facility, rather than via the transfer stations, which reduces
handling costs.

3. Procurements
The procurement of a new contract for managing abandoned vehicles is currently live. The
current contract with Redcorn is due to expire on 31 March 2024.

Waste electrical and electronic equipment managed by the Authority is collected and managed
by a producer compliance scheme. These compliance schemes are fully funded by producers of
electrical products, but local authorities can choose which one they want to use. The Authority is

50




currently running a procurement exercise to determine which compliance scheme provider to use
going forwards.

4. Abbey Road HRRC and Waste Transfer Station (WTS)

Abbey Road HRRC and WTS is managed by WLWA, and the HRRC is run on behalf of Brent
Council.

Changes to the site’s organisational structure are being developed to further improve health and
safety performance.

In December, the Government quickly changed the law to allow householders to dispose of small
amounts of ‘DIY’ wastes free of charge. Previously Abbey Road charged for these materials, but
now must allow residents to deliver up to two 50 litre bags, or one large item of DIY waste for
free each week. Changes have been made at customer interface points, particularly the check-
point where residents arrive, where the changes will be explained. WLWA and Brent Councils
websites have been updated and the booking system has been updated to provide information
about the change and enable users to record the quantities of DIY waste that they will be
bringing. The team is currently trialling methods of recording the quantities of DIY waste brought
to the HRRC by each household, to uphold the legal limits. Quantities above the limit will be
subject to the same charges as previously. The operations team is in consultation with the other
Boroughs about the optimum way of adapting to this change in law.

The site is otherwise operating well. The HRRC has a year-to-date diversion (from residual
waste) rate of 78%, which is second highest of the Borough sites after Townmead Road in
Richmond (81%). The black bag sorting station is diverting 7% of non-recyclable HRRC waste
whilst also serving as a valuable educational tool for residents.

The WTS continues to operate well with the additional street cleansing waste delivered by Brent
Council. This arrangement is saving Brent over £100,000 a year in waste transfer costs.

5. Richmond’s sites: Townmead Road HRRC/WTS and Central Depot
WLWA currently provides waste operations management at Richmond’s two waste sites.
Operational and health and safety improvements continue to be delivered at both sites.

6. Financial Implications

Section Financial Implications

West London Residual The investment in improvements at the transfer stations are financed by the Contractor,
Waste Services contract | except for the Victoria Road bulking shed, which is an Authority change, and will
therefore be financed by the Authority. Capital budget has been allocated for this.

The financial risk RAG status from this contract is green because the contract set-up
protects the Authority from the full impacts of inflation, meaning that significant variance
from the budgeted position is unlikely in this contract year.

Viridor (Lakeside) The cost of managing 90,000 tonnes of residual waste through this contract is projected
to be 3% higher than the budgeted amount due to the impact of inflation.

Procurements The abandoned vehicles procurement is expecting to move from a cost neutral position
to an income generating one. The waste electricals contract is expected to be cost
neutral.

Abbey Road HRRC and | The DIY waste change in law is expected to result in a loss of income of around £50,000
Waste Transfer Station per year, which has been assumed in next year’s budget. There is a risk that the change
(WTS) may result in more abuse of the system by trade waste users, but mitigations are in
place to prevent this.

Use of the WTS to support Brent Council’s contract arrangements is expected to save
Brent over £100,000 per year in waste transfer costs.

Richmond’s sites: WLWA'’s staffing costs to support the sites are covered as part of a Service Level
Townmead Road Agreement with the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames (LBRuT).

51



HRRC/WTS and Central | L BRuT remains responsible for costs associated with delivering the Health and Safety
Depot action plan.

7. Staffing Implications

Changes to the site’s organisational structure are being delivered in full consultation with site
staff and trade union GMB.

8. Legal Implications

Under the service level agreement, LBRuUT remains legally responsible for health and safety
compliance at its Townmead Road and Central Depot sites.

9. Impact on Carbon reduction

Replacing the cranes at Victoria Road will speed up tipping times, increasing the efficiency of the
Boroughs’ collection services and saving carbon.

10.Impact on Environment Directors Priorities

Priority Key points raised within this report

Bringing residents with us Residents are being informed about the DIY change in law through
websites, the booking system and interactions with site staff.

Sustainable decision making N/A

Climate adaptation and decarbonisation See below

Dealing with financial challenges whilst Investments in the cranes at Victoria Road will save Boroughs costs

delivering on climate change and carbon through reduced tipping times and more efficient

collection operations.

11.Impact on Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy

The framework of a joint plan for 2030 to be developed by WLWA and Boroughs was agreed in
March 2022 and is shown below.

Achieve this objective...
Waste

' N
...by tackling [ Food ] Textile waste | | Plastic waste] [More Reuse]
. I N

' N
. A Plan for Capture
...with a clear plan 2030 systems 2030

{ AN
...delivered using Data Commun[cations]

...underpinned by

Changes to the law on DIY waste could result in more waste entering the system (from
commercial sources), which could impact the ‘Reduce Waste’ objective.

12.Impact on statutory, national and London targets
Improvements at HRRCs help towards the target of 65% recycling by 2035 (2030 in London).

Contact | Tom Beagan, Assistant Director Operations 01895 545516
Officers | tombeagan@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

52


mailto:tombeagan@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

Acenda Item 7
WEST LONDON WASTE AUTHORITY Pages 53 to 60

Report of the Treasurer and Managing Director 19 January 2024

Finance Update November 2023

SUMMARY
This report provides an update on financial and operational matters. The key points are:
¢ Day to day financial performance for YTD is showing a deficit largely due to 3 factors

- Contracted rates for waste disposal are higher than budgeted
- Business rates are significantly higher than budgeted
- SERC insurance being included within Supplies and Services

e Continuing to track return on investments on funded programmes. Spend has not met
expectations but direct borough savings continue to be achieved. We are continuing to
seek to do more collaborative working with Boroughs to achieve our year end targets.

e The forecast annual position includes an estimate of PPP contract income as per the
FY24/25 budget and two thirds disbursement to boroughs.

e Operational performance is shown in the KPIs. Two KPIs are in amber (not on target
but high likelihood of turning green before end of financial year) and three are in red (not
on target and low likelihood of turning green before end of financial year).

e There were no delegated decisions to note.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
The Authority is asked to:-

1) Note the current financial position and forecast for 2023/24

2) Note the KPIs to date

3) Note the delegated decisions

1. Financial position — high level summary

A summary of the financial performance for the period and forecast to the end of the year is provided
over the page. The summary shows how financial performance compares to the budget for both the
period and the forecast for the year.

53



High Level Summary

P8 P8 P8 Full Year Full Year  Full Year
Budget Actual  Variance Budget Forecast Variance
£ 000s £ 000s £ 000s £ 000s £ 000s £ 000s
Expenditure
Employees 1,744 1,960 216 2,616 2,878 261
Premises 1,734 2,326 592 2,601 3,499 898
Waste Transfer and Disposal 34,354 34,793 439 51,531 51,989 458
MRF Waste Transfer and Disposal 1,504 2,769 1,265 2,256 3,521 1,265
Supplies and Services 793 1,118 325 1,190 2,019 830
Depreciation 6,916 6,916 0 10,375 10,375 0
Financing and Other 3,970 3,970 0 5,955 5,955 0
Concession Adjustment (3,047) (3,047) 0 (4,570) (4,570) 0
47,969 " 50,806 2,837 71,954' 75,665 3,711
Income
Levies (44,744) (45,148) (404) (67,116) (67,520) (404)
MRF Service Charge (1,504) (2,769) (1,265) (2,256) (3,521) (1,265)
Trade and Other (1,721) (2,542) (821) (2,582) (3,445) (863)
(47,969)  (50,459) (2,490 (71,954)7  (74,486)  (2,533)
(Surplus) / Deficit (0) 347 347 (0) 1,179 1,179
PPP Contract Income 0 0 0 0 (6,300) (6,300)
Disbursement to boroughs 0 0 0 0 4,200 4,200
Net (Surplus) / Deficit (0) 347 347 (0) (921) (921)
HRRC Fund 0 126 126 0 126 126
Actuarial (loss)/gain on pension liability 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Income & Expenditure after Reserve Movement (0) 473 473 (0) (795) (795)
Programme of work funded by PPP income
Depreciation 71 71 0 107 107 0
Premises 30 26 (4) 45 41 (4)
Employees 205 166 (40) 308 272 (36)
Supplies and Services 440 383 (57) 660 585 (75)
Programme costs funded by PPP income (747) (747) 0 (1,120) (1,120) 0
Programmes Total 0 (100) (100) 0 (115) (115)
Disbursement to boroughs in Jul (relates to 22/23) 0 3,301 3,301 0 3,301 3,301

From a year to date operational activities perspective, the overall performance for the period shows
a total overspend of £0.3 million compared to budget. This is made up of overspend on expenditure
of £2.8 million and an increase in income of £2.5 million.

The overspend on expenditure is largely due to higher Waste Transfer and Disposal costs reflective
of increased prices compared to budget, in particular Lakeside’s rate which has come in at £5/tonne
higher than budget. Business rates within Premises costs are significantly higher than budget, with
the forecast at year end expected to be £0.90 million higher than budget. Also a forecast of £0.8
million has been included under Supplies and Services for the insurance of the SERC and Transfer
Stations. This was a spend that had not been budgeted, but has increased substantially since 2016
and needs to be realised within the financial performance. Within Employee costs, there is a cost of
£137k which relates to pension strain costs paid to LPFA.

It is also worth noting that the MRF Waste Transfer and Disposal costs are overspent by £1.3 million.
This is due to the inclusion of Brent’s contract which was not budgeted. However, this cost is a nil

54



effect to the authority as these costs are directly recovered back from the boroughs. Higher Trade
and Other Income (recognising £0.8 million more than budget) has contributed to reduce the overall
deficit to a surplus.

Significantly, in other activities, PPP income for the year has been forecasted at £6.3 million. The
volatile electricity market and impact of any windfall tax create some uncertainty in this estimate and
the value will only become clear after year end when figures are finalised and paid over to the
Authority thereafter. At that time two thirds will be passed on to boroughs in accordance with the
Finance Strategy and as outlined in the 2024/25 Budget.

Included within the budget monitoring, is also a disbursement of excess reserves from the previous
financial year of £3.3m which was presented in June as part of the 2022/23 draft outturn report. To
note, the excess revenue share from the PPP contract which relates to 2022/23 has now been
received (£19.1m). Two thirds of this has been paid to the boroughs in disbursements in July. The
budget for FY24/25 is forecasting we shall receive £6.3 million of PPP income, of which two thirds
(£4.2 million) will be disbursed back to the boroughs as per the Finance Strategy.

Taking into account the overspend on budget within business rates of £0.8m, Lakeside contractual
rate of £0.4m, SERC and Transfer Stations insurance of £0.8m and the pension strain costs of £0.1m,
the total deficit would be £2.1m. However, the Authority has put controls into place to bring spend
down where possible, bringing the forecast total deficit to £1.2m. These controls have reduced spend
where possible but not detrimental to the service the Authority provides. The deficit of £1.2m will be
managed via reserves which the Authority sets aside to manage risks of costs coming in higher than
anticipated.

The main variances are detailed in the standard breakdown in Appendix 1 which separates out the
main types of waste streams and distinguishes between PAYT and FCL activities. Notable items of
detail from Appendix 1 include:

Looking at the PAYT waste forecast, the overall residual waste variance of £0.1 million is made up of
slightly higher than budgeted tonnages coupled with higher than budgeted contractor prices (due to
inflation). The higher waste volumes are also reflected in the PAYT levy variance (£0.4 million) which
shows actual rebates paid from boroughs to WLWA for higher than budgeted tonnages.

Secondly, in terms of FCL waste, there has been higher than budgeted HRRC volumes in particular
mattresses, leading to higher waste transport and disposal forecast costs against budget totalling
£0.5 million.

The Authority’s level of trade and other income is healthy and forecast to out-perform the budget by
over £0.8 million.

The forecast for the year for the improvements to borough HRRC’s anticipates investments will be
made by the year end.

2. KPIs for 2023/24

Appendix 2 summarises the performance to the end of November, in both a summary table, and
significant KPIs being shown graphically with a year on year trend.

Most indicators are on target (green) and the performance is reflected in the RAG rating and
commentary.

There are two KPIs in amber. Turnaround times have been impacted by fires at both transfer stations,
and crane issues at Victoria Road. Overall £/tonne is impacted by inflationary pressures on contractor
fees.

55



People development is on red due to year to date target of 333 not being met. Training and people
development has been impacted by leavers within the Authority, but is now increasing. However it is
unlikely the target of 450 for the full year will be met.

Lower volumes of food waste tonnages have been collected compared to budget making this KPI
red. Staff turnover is red due to nine leavers’ year to date. Recruitment has been difficult in the
current market, but this is being worked on.

The graphs in Appendix 2 visualise the performance of the Authority, and show year on year trends.
The graphs demonstrate that waste has been reducing over the years.

It is worth noting that from time to time the performance for a particular indicator may slip into amber
or red, but the performance will be managed and actions undertaken to bring the indicator back to
standard during the year. Additionally, given the cumulative nature of each individual indicator, an
indicator is more likely to slip into amber or red in the early months.

3. Delegated decisions

To provide further transparency of operational arrangements, this standard section of the report
summarises any significant financial decisions made since those reported to the last Authority
meeting and not reported elsewhere in the agenda.

There have been none to note.

4. Impact on Joint Waste Management Strategy — Improvements to financial management in the
Authority will continue to ensure that the Authority addresses policies of the JMWMS.

Contact Officers Sapna Dhanani, Finance Manager
sapnadhanani@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

lan O’Donnell, Treasurer
ianodonnell@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

Emma Beal, Managing Director

emmabeal@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

56



Appendix 1

Pay As You Throw ~PR4AYTD ~riod8 ~ T 2023- ~ Full Ye ~ Forecas ™ e T
Budget Actual Variance Commentary Budget Estimate Variance Commentary
£000s £000s  £000s £000s £000s  £000s
Cost of more residual waste going to .
Lakeside, offset by £1.5m back dated landfill Forecast based on tonnages remaining close
Waste - Residual 27,588 27,669 T y, T 41,382 41,481 100 to budget coupled with higher than
reconciliation credit received for the years
budgeted contractor costs.
2018-2022.
3% lower tonnages collected than the same Forecasts based on YTD current level of
Waste - Food 252 249 X 379 374 .
period last year. activity.
Waste - Mixed Organic 0 0 0 0 0 0
Waste - Green 1,105 1,449 13% higher tc{nnages collected compared to 1,657 1,822 Forlet.:asts'based on \'(TD current level of
the same period from last year. activity with a drop in colder season.
Waste - Other 379 190  (190) 569 285  (285)
Depreciation 5,876 5,876 0 8,814 8,814 0
Financing 3,014 3,014 0 4521 4,521 0
Business rates increased due to national
. N i | Forecasts based on YTD current level of
Premises 851 1,311 460 valuations - meaning higher than budget by 1,276 1,966 activit
over £850k. v
Concession Accounting Adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Levy Income (35,391) (35,795) (404) (53,086) (53,490) (404)
PAYT Net Expenditure 3,674 3,963 289 5,511 5,773 262
Fixed Cost Levy R4 YTD Period 8 2023-24 Full Year Forecast
Budget Actual Variance Commentary Budget Estimate Variance Commentary
£ 000s £ 000s £ 000s £ 000s £ 000s £ 000s
Allows for budgeted roles to be filled in, but
Payment to leavers and agency - N .
. ) also in line with the HR Paper, includes the
Employees 1,744 1,960 216 staff/honarariums to cover some gaps in 2,616 2,878 i i
K costs of outsourcing HR services for 6
services.
months.
Business rates increased due to national
F ts based on YTD tlevel of
Premises 883 1,015 132 valuations - meaning higher than budget by 1,325 1,532 a:t:?/(i:tas s basedon currentievero
over £850k. V-
Cost of more residual waste going to
Lakeside, offset by £1.5m back dated landfill X
. o ) X Forecast based on tonnages continue to
Waste - Residual 3,359 3,263 (96) reconciliation credit received for the years 5,039 5,077 L
remain high throughout the year.
2018-2022. Should decrease as less waste
sent to Lakeside.
Waste - Green 186 270 a4 279 306 For.et.:asts'based on \'(TD current level of
activity with a drop in colder season.
Forecasts based on YTD current level of
Waste - Wood 759 653  (105) 1,138 980  (158) . .
activity.
. Forecasts based on YTD current level of
Waste - Other 727 1,049 322 Higher volume of Mattresses collected. 1,090 1,664 activity
Waste - MRF Ealing 1,504 1,514 10 e 2,256 2,266 10
Nets out with income below.
Waste - MRF Brent 0 1,255 1,255 0 1,255 1,255
Supplies and Services 793 1,118 325 1,190 2,019 830 Insurance cost for SERC £0.8m.
Depreciation 1,041 1,041 0 1,561 1,561 0
Financing 300 300 0 450 450 0
Revenue Funding of Debt 656 656 0 984 984 0
Concession Accounting Adjustment (3,047) (3,047) 0 (4,570)  (4,570) 0
Trade Waste and Other Income (1,721)  (2,542) (821) (2,582) (3,445) (863)
MRF Income Ealing (1,504) (1,514) (10) Nets out with costs above. (2,256)  (2,266) (10)
MRF Income Brent 0 (1,255) (1,255) 0 (1,255) (1,255)
Levy Income (9,353)  (9,353) 0 (14,029) (14,029) 0
Fixed Cost Levy Net Expenditure (3,674) (3,617) 58 (5,511) (4,594) 917
(Surplus) / Deficit | (0) 347 347 (0) 1,179 1,179
X Forecasts based on YTD current level of
Social Value & Reuse 308 236 (72) 463 376 (87) ..
activity.
F ts based on YTD tlevel of
Digital Twin 32 361 30 47 545 orecastsbasedon TTDcurrentjevel o
activity.
Communications 107 50 (57) 160 85 (75)
Programme costs funded by PPP inco (747) (747) 0 (1,120) (1,120) 0
Programs total 0 (100) (100) 0 (115) (115)
PPPi in relation to FY23/24 - to be paid
PPP Contract Income 0 0 0 0 (6300 (6300) " incomeinrelation to Fv23/24-to be pai
after yearend
Two thirds of i to be disb dt
PPP Contract Income disbursed 0 0 0 0 4,200 3 wo thir S © lmcorAne ? © disbursedto
boroughs in line with Finance Strategy
Reserves disbursed FY22/23 0 3,301 3,301 0 3,301 3,301 Disbursed in FY23/24
HRRC fund 0 126 126 0 126 126
Total Income & Expenditure | (0) 3,673 3,673 (0) 2,390 2,390

57




89

Appendix 2

Key Performance Indi 23/24
Cumulative
KPI 23/24 Target Red Threshold 22/23 Actual |Description Commentary about target Nov-23|Commentary about performance
Keep Waste Moving
Percentage of residual waste collected in
. R N month sent to landfill (shows the tonnes of
Diversion from Landfill n 0 . n
1 % 95.00% <95% =Red 99.89% waste Suez have sent to landfill and the Suez' contractual target is 3.9% max to landfill. 99.8%
° cumulative collected asbestos waste
collected at Abbey Road).
R R R Contract turnaround time is 15 minutes but breach Fires at both major transfer stations had knock-on effects on
N Average vehicle turnaround times - taking B . L )
Turnaround times (% waste to Transport Avenue, Victoria Road and of contract is at 25 minutes and over. FY23 saw an tipping times. Repeated break-downs of the bunker cranes at
2 above 25 minutes) for 4.5% >7.5% = Red 6.8% P ’ ) increase due to crane issues at Victoria Road and rail 7.1%|Victoria Rd (due for replacement in April) also increased tipping
A Abbey Road. Total waste loads (cumulative) . . . R R A
borough vehicles and over 25 mins strikes, but expecting to see an improvement to times. The contractor has made site layout changes which has
. prioryearsin FY24. quickened tipping times since November.
Increase Effici
Iereteeit otk Gemmes Eslliaskee) aumveiiely Inflationa ressure has seen overall £/tonne increase against
3 Overall £/tonne £93.47 > £98.15 (i.e. +5%) = Red £92.07 and the total spend of waste transfer and Reflects boroughs budgeted tonnages. £94.95| Ty pressure ‘ 8
. target but this is unlikely to go in to red.
disposal.
Total spend of waste transfer and disposal
4 Overall £/person £29.32 > £31.84 (i.e. +5%) = Red £26.72 divided by total population of 6 boroughs Reflects boroughs budgeted tonnages. £28.69
(provided from ONS website).
Divert From Waste
All waste - monthly ki Total cumulative waste collected divided b
5 vke 26.14 >28kg =Red 24.18 N N 4 Reflects boroughs budgeted tonnages. 25.18]
per person population (taken from ONS website).
Residual waste Total cumulative residual waste collected Reflects boroughs budgeted tonnages. Food within
6 19.61 >21kg =Red 19.73 divided by population (taken from ONS ) u S 19.38
monthly kg per person N residual should be reducing this figure.
website).
Food waste - monthl Total cumulative food waste collected Reflects boroughs budgeted tonnages. The Food
7 ke per person \ 1.64 <1.55 kg =Red 1.58 divided by population (taken from ONS waste investment of £500k per borough should drive Lower volumes of food waste collection than budget.
gperp website). this up.
Effective Control
. Training target for full yearis 450. Current levels are low due to
Total number of learning and development L N
B A S < — leavers, however, new starters joining are picking up on
8 People development 333.33 <262.50 = Red 515.00 v N Includes monthly team meetings. training, and team training days for whole Authority are
(amongst total employees). TargetisaYTD ) N . .
figure for accura contributing to the number increasing. However, the target of
g Y- 450 will not be achieved hence the KPI being red.
Not a large staff number therefore can be skewed by
Cumulative leavers YTD against total minimal movement. Counts employees who leave
9 Staff turnover 15% >20% =Red 15% B L " [ . Total of 9leavers for YTD (3in May, 2in Sep, 3in Oct, 1in Nov).
budgeted staff. WLWA after their first probabtion review at 10
weeks of employement.
In 2020, published figures show that sickness
. . o, .
N . . abse-nce el pUbh,c SO SRt S 224 WS Sickness rates are back down and as a green KPI after the first
10 Sickness rate 2.0% >3% =Red 2.4% Cumulative sick days lost year to date. has increased to 4.4% in 2022. Have left target at 2% 1.9% N R R .
) R . R half of the financial year saw this KPl in red or amber.
after considering the wide gap between the size of
our workforce and those of other public sector.
1 Paying suppliers 30 >30days = Red 27 Average number of days to pay suppliers in statutory level 24.1]
promptly the month.
Maintaining cash flow Debt at end of period (percentage of non lev
12 AT g 8% >10% = Red 0% N p (P & Y Reflects debt at end of period. 0.0%
(Minimising trade income excluding borough debt).
13 RIDDOR incidents at o >1=Red o Average over 3 ye.ars is 0.33. Given the fact that_we 0.00
Abbey Road have not had any in the past 2 years, the targetis 0.
Average time taken in
days to complete the Time (days) taken from when hazard was Time (days) taken from when hazard was raised
14 entire hazard card 5 >10days = Red 0o raised through to comments from site through to comments from site manager and H&S 1.25]
process from start to manager and H&S advisor. advisor.
finish




40.00

35.00

30.00

25.00

20.00

15.00

Overall £/person

——

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

—2023/24 e—2022/23 e—2021/22 ==—2020/21

Jan

Feb

110.00

100.00

90.00

80.00

70.00

60.00

50.00

Overall £/tonne

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

—2023/24 e—2022/23 e—)021/22 w—2020/21

Feb

35.00

30.00

25.00

20.00

15.00

10.00

5.00

0.00

All waste - monthly kg per person

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

=2023/24 m@2022/23 @2021/22 =2020/21

Feb

59




Residual waste - monthly kg per person

25.00
20.00
15.00
10.00

5.00

0.00 -

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
m2023/24 [@2022/23 [@2021/22 ®2020/21
Food waste - monthly kg per person

2.00
1.80

1.60
1.40
1.20
1.00
0.80
0.60
0.40
0.20
0.00 -
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

m2023/24 m@2022/23 @2021/22 =2020/21

60




Aaoenda Item 8
Pages 61to 74

WEST LONDON WASTE AUTHORITY

Report of the Treasurer and Managing Director 19 January 2024

Audit Committee — Terms of Reference

SUMMARY

This report provides an update on the proposed amendments to the Terms of Reference for the Audit
Committee.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
The Authority is asked to:-

1) Approve the proposed amended Terms of Reference in Appendix 1 of the report.

1. Audit Committee — Terms of Reference

Policy 7 of the Joint Waste Management Strategy requires the Authority to work with the
constituent boroughs to provide waste management services that offer good value, that
provide customer satisfaction and that meet and exceed legislative requirements.

The Audit Committee was set up in 2013 to enhance the governance arrangements of the
Authority and to deliver greater transparency to the boroughs of the finances and processes of
the Authority.

The Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee were approved by Authority in April 2013,
and have had slight amendments made throughout the years.

In 2022, CIPFA updated their 2018 Position Statement for Audit Committees in Local
Authorities and Police. This has been used to update the Terms of Reference for the
Authority’s Audit Committee, to ensure we continue to have an independent and high-level
focus on governance, risk and control arrangements.

The updated Terms of Reference in Appendix 1 were presented to the Audit Committee on
19t January 2024, and this report is asking Authority to approve the updated Terms of
Reference.

2. The key changes made to the sections within the Terms of Reference are summarised
as follows:

Membership allows for all six Authority members to be a part of the Audit Committee when
previously this was three. This will allow for greater transparency across all boroughs.
Membership also allows for a Vice Chair of the Audit Committee and this role will need to be
appointed into.

Another change under membership has been to allow for four members to constitute a
quorum.

Reporting outlines that the Audit Committee shall provide an Annual Report of the Audit
Committee which would detail how it has complied with CIPFA’s Position Statement and
provide an assessment of its effectiveness.

61



Responsibilities has been expanded to provide clarity and be more in line with CIPFA’s
Position Statement.

Under Meetings, the amended Terms of Reference now states that the Chair, Vice Chair and
Independent member will meet prior to the Audit Committee to review papers and comment.
The Chair will also meet with the Finance Manager prior to each Audit Committee to review
the papers and address any concerns. The Chair and Independent Member will also be able
to meet separately and privately with the external auditor and Head of Internal Audit.

Contact Officers Sapna Dhanani, Finance Manager

sapnadhanani@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

lan O’Donnell, Treasurer

ianodonnell@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

Emma Beal, Managing Director

emmabeal@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

62



mailto:ianodonnell@westlondonwaste.gov.uk
mailto:emmabeal@westlondonwaste.gov.uk

Appendix 1

West London Wusie

Treating waste as a valuable res

Audit Committee — Terms of Reference

63



The Authority has established an Audit Committee as a Committee of the Authority to
provide an independent and high-level focus on the adequacy of governance, risk and
control arrangements. The Committee’s role is ensuring that there is sufficient
assurance over governance, risk and control and gives greater control to all those
charged with governance that those arrangements are effective.

The Committee has oversight of both internal and external audit together with the
financial and governance reports, helping to ensure that there are adequate
arrangements in place for both internal challenge and public accountability.

Membership

The members of the Audit committee are:

e Six Authority members, one of whom will be appointed as Chair and a second
the Vice-Chair by the Authority.

e One independent non-voting external member who will be co-opted by the
Committee for a period of three-four years and will be eligible to serve for a
maximum of eight years.

e The Audit Committee will be provided with a secretariat function by the
Finance Manager.

e The committee needs four members to constitute a quorum.

e Members should be willing to:

o Promote good governance principles, identifying ways that better
governance arrangements can help achieve the Authority's strategic
priorities.

o Willingness to operate in an apolitical manner.

o Unbiased attitudes — treating auditors, the executive and
management fairly.

o The ability to challenge the executive and senior managers when
required.

o Knowledge, expertise and interest in the work of the committee.

Reporting

e Report annually on how the Committee has complied with the position statement,
discharged its responsibilities, and include an assessment of its performance. The
report should be made available to the public. This will be the Annual Report of the
Audit Committee.

Responsibilities
The Audit Committee will advise the Authority and Treasurer on:

e The strategic process for risk, control and governance and the Statement on
Internal Control, including arrangements for financial management, ensuring value
for money, supporting standards and ethics, and managing the Authority’s
exposure to the risks of fraud and corruption.

e Be satisfied that the authority’s accountability statements, including the annual
governance statement, properly reflect the risk environment, and any actions
required to improve it, and demonstra@©4ow governance supports the achievement



of the authority’s objectives.

e Support the maintenance of effective arrangements for financial reporting and
review the statutory statements of account and any reports that accompany
them. Adequacy of management response to issues identified by audit activity,
including external audit’'s management letter.

e Support a comprehensive understanding of governance across the
organisation and among all those charged with governance, fulfilling the
principles of good governance.

e Consider the effectiveness of the Authority’s risk management arrangements.
It should understand the risk profile of the Authority and seek assurances that
active arrangements are in place on risk-related issues.

¢ In relation to the authority’s internal audit functions:

o oversee its independence, objectivity, performance, and conformance
to professional standards.
support effective arrangements for internal audit.
promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance
framework.

e Consider the opinion, reports and recommendations of external audit and
inspection agencies and their implications for governance, risk management or
control, and monitor management action in response to the issues raised by
external audit.

e Contribute to the operation of efficient and effective external audit
arrangements, supporting the independence of auditors and promoting audit
quality.

e Support effective relationships between all providers of assurance, audits and
inspections, and the organisation, encouraging openness to challenge, review,
and accountability.

e Assurances relating to the corporate governance requirements for the
organisation.

e Proposals for tendering for either internal or external audit services or for
purchase of non-audit services from contractors who provide audit services.

e Anti-fraud policies, whistle blowing processes and arrangements for special
investigations.

e The Audit committee will also periodically review its own effectiveness and report
the results of that review to the Authority.

Rights

The Audit Committee may:

e Co-opt additional members for a period not exceeding a year to provide
specialist skills, knowledge and experience.

e Procure specialist ad-hoc advice at the expense of the organisation, subject to
budgets agreed by the Authority.

Access

The Head of Internal Audit and the representative of External Audit will have free and
confidential access to the Chair of the Audit 65nmittee.



Meetings

e The Audit Committee will meet at least two times a year. The Chair of the Audit
Committee may convene additional meetings, as they deem necessary.

e The Chair, Vice Chair and Independent Member will meet prior to the Audit
Committee meeting to review the papers and comment.

e The Chair will meet with the Finance Manager prior to the Audit Committee meeting
to review the papers and go through any queries,

o Meet separately with the external auditor and with the Head of Internal Audit
annually.

e A minimum of 4 members of the Audit Committee will be present for the
meeting to be deemed quorate.

e Audit Committee meetings will normally be attended by the Managing Director,
Treasurer, Finance Manager, Head of Internal Audit and a representative of External
Audit.

e The Audit Committee may ask any other officials of the Authority to attend to assist
it with its discussions on any matter.

e The Audit Committee may ask any or all of those who normally attend but who are
not members to withdraw to facilitate open and frank discussion of matters.

e The Managing Director or the Treasurer may ask the Audit Committee to convene
further meetings to discuss issues on which they want the Committee’s advice.

Information Requirements

Each meeting the Audit Committee will be provided with:

e Areport summarising any significant changes to the organisation’s Risk
Register
e A progress report from the Head of Internal Audit summarising:
o Work performed (and a comparison with work planned)
o Key issues emerging from internal audit work
o Management response to audit recommendations;
o Changes to periodic plan
o Any resourcing issues affecting the delivery of Internal Audit Objectives

e A progress report from the External Audit representative summarising work done
and emerging findings.

As and when appropriate the Committee will also be provided with:

e Proposals for the Terms of Reference of internal Audit

e The Internal Audit Strategy

e The Head of Internal Audit's Annual Opinion and Report
e Quality Assurance reports on the Internal Audit function;
e Significant risk and assurance needs for the Authority

e Strategic risk register and Operational risk registers where appropriate
e Information on any fraudulent activity

e The draft accounts of the organisation;

e The draft statement of Internal control;

e A report on any changes to accounting policies;

e External Audit's management letter 66



e A report on any proposals to tender for audit functions;
e Areport on co-operation between Internal and External Audit

67



Audit Committee Indicative Work Plan

September | January

Draft Accounts X

Annual Governance Statement X

Annual Internal Audit Assurance X

Statement

External Audit Management Letter X

Risk Register X X
Review of Risk Processes X
Internal Audit Plan (Annual) X

External Audit Plan X
Internal Audit Reports X X
Review of Accounting Policies X

Review of Internal Audit Provision
and Strategy moving forward

Every 3 years

Review of governance policies

On any notable or non-
minor change

Review of Audit Committee’s
effectiveness and preparation of
report for the Authority

Annual

68




West London Waste

Treating waste as a valuable resouwrce

Audit Committee — Terms of Reference

69



The Authority has established an Audit Committee as a Committee of the Authority to
provide an independent and high-level focus on the adequacy of governance, risk and
control arrangements. The Committee’s role is ensuring that there is sufficient
assurance over governance, risk and control and gives greater control to all those
charged with governance that those arrangements are effective.

The Committee has oversight of both internal and external audit together with the
financial and governance reports, helping to ensure that there are adequate
arrangements in place for both internal challenge and public accountability.

Membership

The members of the Audit committee are:

e Six Authority members, one of whom will be appointed as Chair and a second
the Vice-Chair by the Authority.

¢ One independent non-voting external member who will be co-opted by the
Committee for a period of three-four years and will be eligible to serve for a
maximum of eight years.

e The Audit Committee will be provided with a secretariat function by the
Finance Manager.

e The committee needs four members to constitute a quorum.

e Members should be willing to:

o Promote good governance principles, identifying ways that better
governance arrangements can help achieve the Authority's strategic
priorities.

o Willingness to operate in an apolitical manner.

o Unbiased attitudes — treating auditors, the executive and
management fairly.

o The ability to challenge the executive and senior managers when
required.

o Knowledge, expertise and interest in the work of the committee.

Reporting

e Report annually on how the Committee has complied with the position statement,
discharged its responsibilities, and include an assessment of its performance. The
report should be made available to the public. This will be the Annual Report of the
Audit Committee.

Responsibilities
The Audit Committee will advise the Authority and Treasurer on:

e The strategic process for risk, control and governance and the Statement on
Internal Control, including arrangements for financial management, ensuring value
for money, supporting standards and ethics, and managing the Authority’s
exposure to the risks of fraud and corruption.

e Be satisfied that the authority’s accountability statements, including the annual
governance statement, properly reflec/ ()2 risk environment, and any actions



required to improve it, and demonstrate how governance supports the achievement
of the authority’s objectives.

e Support the maintenance of effective arrangements for financial reporting and
review the statutory statements of account and any reports that accompany
them. Adequacy of management response to issues identified by audit activity,
including external audit’s management letter.

e Support a comprehensive understanding of governance across the
organisation and among all those charged with governance, fulfilling the
principles of good governance.

e Consider the effectiveness of the Authority’s risk management arrangements.
It should understand the risk profile of the Authority and seek assurances that
active arrangements are in place on risk-related issues.

e [n relation to the authority’s internal audit functions:

o oversee its independence, objectivity, performance, and conformance
to professional standards.

o support effective arrangements for internal audit.

o promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance
framework.

o Consider the opinion, reports and recommendations of external audit and
inspection agencies and their implications for governance, risk management or
control, and monitor management action in response to the issues raised by
external audit.

o Contribute to the operation of efficient and effective external audit
arrangements, supporting the independence of auditors and promoting audit
quality.

e Support effective relationships between all providers of assurance, audits and
inspections, and the organisation, encouraging openness to challenge, review,
and accountability.

e Assurances relating to the corporate governance requirements for the
organisation.

e Proposals for tendering for either internal or external audit services or for
purchase of non-audit services from contractors who provide audit services.

e Anti-fraud policies, whistle blowing processes and arrangements for special
investigations.

e The Audit committee will also periodically review its own effectiveness and report
the results of that review to the Authority.

Rights

The Audit Committee may:

e Co-opt additional members for a period not exceeding a year to provide
specialist skills, knowledge and experience.

e Procure specialist ad-hoc advice at the expense of the organisation, subject to
budgets agreed by the Authority.

Access

The Head of Internal Audit and the representative of External Audit will have free and
confidential access to the Chair of the Audit / 1 nmittee.



Meetings

e The Audit Committee will meet at least two times a year. The Chair of the Audit
Committee may convene additional meetings, as they deem necessary.

e The Chair, Vice Chair and Independent Member will meet prior to the Audit
Committee meeting to review the papers and comment.

e The Chair will meet with the Finance Manager prior to the Audit Committee meeting
to review the papers and go through any queries,

o Meet separately with the external auditor and with the Head of Internal Audit
annually.

e A minimum of 4 members of the Audit Committee will be present for the
meeting to be deemed quorate.

e Audit Committee meetings will normally be attended by the Managing Director,
Treasurer, Finance Manager, Head of Internal Audit and a representative of External
Audit.

e The Audit Committee may ask any other officials of the Authority to attend to assist
it with its discussions on any matter.

e The Audit Committee may ask any or all of those who normally attend but who are
not members to withdraw to facilitate open and frank discussion of matters.

e The Managing Director or the Treasurer may ask the Audit Committee to convene
further meetings to discuss issues on which they want the Committee’s advice.

Information Requirements
Each meeting the Audit Committee will be provided with:

e A report summarising any significant changes to the organisation’s Risk
Register
e A progress report from the Head of Internal Audit summarising:
o Work performed (and a comparison with work planned)
o Key issues emerging from internal audit work
o Management response to audit recommendations;
o Changes to periodic plan
o Any resourcing issues affecting the delivery of Internal Audit Objectives

e A progress report from the External Audit representative summarising work done
and emerging findings.

As and when appropriate the Committee will also be provided with:

e Proposals for the Terms of Reference of internal Audit

e The Internal Audit Strategy

e The Head of Internal Audit’'s Annual Opinion and Report
e Quality Assurance reports on the Internal Audit function;
e Significant risk and assurance needs for the Authority

e Strategic risk register and Operational risk registers where appropriate
e [nformation on any fraudulent activity

e The draft accounts of the organisation;

e The draft statement of Internal control;

e Areport on any changes to accounting policies;

e External Audit's management letter 72



e A report on any proposals to tender for audit functions;
e Areport on co-operation between Internal and External Audit

73



Audit Committee Indicative Work Plan

September | January

Draft Accounts X

Annual Governance Statement X

Annual Internal Audit Assurance X

Statement

External Audit Management Letter X

Risk Register X X
Review of Risk Processes X
Internal Audit Plan (Annual) X

External Audit Plan X
Internal Audit Reports X X
Review of Accounting Policies X
Review of Internal Audit Provision Every 3 years

and Strategy moving forward

Review of governance policies

On any notable or non-
minor change

Review of Audit Committee’s
effectiveness and preparation of
report for the Authority

Annual

74




	Agenda
	Agenda

	4 2024/25 Budget
	5 West London Waste Authority 2023-24 Business Plan
	6 Contracts and Operations Update
	7 Finance Update November 2023
	8 Audit Committee - Terms of Reference
	Appendix 1
	Membership
	Reporting
		Report annually on how the Committee has complied with the position statement, discharged its responsibilities, and include an assessment of its performance. The report should be made available to the public.  This will be the Annual Report of the Audit Committee.
	Responsibilities
	Rights
	Access
	Information Requirements
	As and when appropriate the Committee will also be provided with:
	Audit Committee - Terms of Reference - Appendix


